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DArcangelo&Co,LLP 
Certified Public AccounLanls & ConsulLJnts 

120 Lomond Court, Utica, N.Y. 13502-5950 
315-735-5216 Fax: 315-735-5210 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Chairman and Members of the County Legislature 
County of Herkimer, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the County of Herkimer, New York, as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Herkimer County lndustrial Development Agency, which represent 8%, 3%, 
and 14%, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component units. 
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose rep011 has been furnished to us, and our opinion, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Herkimer County lndustrial Development Agency, is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the lJnited States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free from material 
mis statement. 

An audit involves peiforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

New Accounting Standard 

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, the County changed accounting policies related to the 
accounting and reporting of fiduciary activities by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting 
Standards (GASB Statement) No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The new pronouncement changes the criteria 
used to detennine which government activities are considered fiduciary and provides guidance on 
accounting and reporting for the fiduciary activities identified. Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and tl1e 
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Herkimer, New York, as of December 31, 2020, 
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the Table of Contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a pa11 of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other lnformalion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County of Herkimer, New York's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ()fFederal 
Reguialiuns Part 200, Unif()rm Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements.for 
Federal Awards, and the accompanying Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of 
Rules and Regulations and are not a required pat1 of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Transportation Assistance 
Expended are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and the Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 13, 2021, 
on our consideration of the County of Herkimer, New York's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County of Herkimer, New York's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

f;) '~o -1--&.>LL/J 

August 13, 2021 

Utica, New York 
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Certified Public AccounLanLs & Consultants 

120 Lomond Court, Utica, N.Y. 13502-5950 
315-735-5216 Fax: 315-735-5210 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Chairman and Members of tl1e County Legislature 
County of Herkimer, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fond information of the County of Herkimer, New York, as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial .statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Herkimer County Industrial Development Agency, which represent 8%, 3%, 
and 14%, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component units. 
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Herkimer County Industrial Development Agency, is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
filiancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

New Accounting Standard 

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, the County changed accounting policies related to the 
accounting and repmting of fiduciary activities by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting 
Standards (GASB Statement) No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The new pronouncement changes the criteria 
used to determine which government activities are considered fiduciary and provides guidance on 
accounting and reporting for the fiduciary activities identified. Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
th is matter. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repm1 of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Herkimer, New York, as of December 31, 2020, 
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplement my lnf<Jrmalion 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the Table of Contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential pai1 of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of prepaiing the infonnation and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic linancial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other lnformarion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County of Herkimer, New York's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Award::; is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Cade of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal A ,mrds, and the accompanying Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended is presented 
for purposes or additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of 
Rules and Regulations and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Scheduk of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Transportation Assistance 
Expended are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and cenain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and the Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 13, 2021, 
on our consideration of the County of Herkimer, New York's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reponing and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance witl1 Government Auditing Standard~ in considering the County of Herkimer, New York' s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Our discussion and analysis of the County of Herkimer, New York's financial performance provides an 
overview of the County's financial activities for the years ended December 3 1, 2020 and 2019. This document 
should be read in conjunction with the County's financial statements which follow this narrative. 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

(These items will be explained in more detail in subsequent sec/ions u_( the narrative.) 

Governmental Activities 

• The assets and deferred outflows of Herkimer County's Governmental Activities exceeded its liabilities 
and deferred inflows at December 31, 2020, by $532,332, which is illustrated in the Statement of Net 
Position (Page 10). 

• The net position attributable to governmental activities decreased by S 1,626,464 dming 2020 (Page 11 ). 

• At December 31, 2020, Herkimer County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $40,620,907, a decrease of $4,112,343 from the prior year (Page 13). This is primarily 
attributable to continued spending in the Capital Fund for the public safety project, which was nearing 
completion at December 31, 2020. 

Business-Type Activities 

• The liabilities and deferred inflows of Herkimer County's Business-Type Activities exceeded its assets 
and deferred outflows at December 31, 2020, by $415,196 which is illustrated in the Statement ofNet 
Position (Page 15). 

• The total net position attributable to Business-Type activities decreased by $659,030 (Page I 6) to a net 
deficit in the current year. This is primarily attributed to an increase in the net pension liability of 
$253, I 05 and a net increase in the other postemployment benefits liability of $360,310. 

2. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Herkimer County's basic 
financial statements. These statements consist of three components: l) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and 
fund financial statements. Each view will be explained in more detail to follow in this narrative. In 
addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental infonnation that will 
enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Herkimer County. 

3. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the 
County's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government­
wide statements provide sho11 and long-term information about the County's financial status as a whole, 
and can be found on pages IO and 11. 

The two government-wide statements report the County's net position and how it has changed. Net 
position is the difference between the County's total assets and deferred outflows of resources, and total 
liabilities and defened inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County's 
financial condition. 

See Independent Auditor's Repo1i. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories; l) governmental activities; 2) business­
type activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most or the County's basic 
services such as public safety, economic assistance and opp01tunity, and general government suppo1t. 
Property taxes, sales tax, and State and Federal grant funds finance most or these activities. The Herkimer 
Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation has been included in the Governmental Activities as a blended 
component unit. The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide. 
These include sewer and workers' compensation services offered by Herkimer County. The final category 
is the component units. The County includes the Herkimer Industrial Development Agency and Herkimer 
County Community College in this report. Although legally separate, these "component units" are 
included as required by GASB. Separately issued financial statements arc available for the component 
units. See the notes to financial statements. 

4. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Assets 
Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets, Net of 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current and Other Liabilities 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) 

Revenues 
Program Revenues 

Charges for Services 
Operating Grants and 

Contributions 
General Revenues 

Property Taxes 
Other Taxes and Items 
Total Revenues 

Table l - Herkimer County's 
Net Position (In Millions) 

Governmental Activities .Basiness-T)'.pe Activities 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

$ 63.8 $ 66.9 $ 8.6 $ 8.9 

120.4 108.0 -----12 4.3 
$ __ 1.84.2 $ 174.9 $ 12._5 $ . 13_..2 

$ 44.0 $ 26.4 $ I.P $_ 0 .. 6 

$ 21.6 $ 20.1 $ 0.2 $ 0. 1 
205.4 177.2 -1..U 13.4 

$ 227.0 $ 197.3 $_ 13_ . .2 $ 13.5 

$ 0.7 $ 1.8 $ _M $,_ __ JlJ 

$ 76.9 $ 63.6 $ J.4 $ 1.5 
12.8 2 1.1 0.5 0.5 

(89.2) (82.5} (2.3) (1.8) 
$ 0.5 $ 2.2 $ (Q.i) $ 0.2 

Table 2 - Herkimer County's 
Activities (In Millions) 

Governmental Activities Business-Tvge Activities 
2020 2019 

$ 11.4 $ 12.0 

29.5 31.7 

25.7 26.6 

~ 39.8 
l 06.3 110. 1 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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2020 ?019 

$ 2.1 $ 2, 1 

0.0 0.0 

0.0 0.0 
__ o_.1 0.1 
_il 2.2 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Table 2 - Herkimer County's 
Activities On Millions) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

Program Expenses 
General Government Support 22.3 20.5 0.0 0.0 
Education 5.9 6.3 0.0 0.0 
Public Safety 10.0 11.4 0.0 0.0 
Public Health 7.1 5.8 0.0 0.0 
Transportation 19.4 20.3 0.0 0.0 
Economic Assistance and 

Opportunity 39.2 39.0 0.0 0.0 
Culture and Recreation 0.7 0.8 0.0 0.0 
Home and Community Services 1.] 1.2 2.2 2.1 
Workers Compensation Benefits 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.6 
Unallocated Interest on Debt _n 2.1 __Q,Q 0.0 

Total Program Expenses 107.9 107.4 ____ll 2.7 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ (1 6) $ 2.7 $ (.07) $ .. ({Ll) 

Net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The assets 
and deferred outflows of Herkimer County's Governmental Activities exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows at December 31, 2020, by $532,332. This reflects a $1,626,464 decrease from the 2019 net 
position amount. This decrease is due to a deficit of revenues over expenditures for the cunent year. 

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the County's four largest governmental programs: public safety, 
public health, transportation, and economic assistance and opportunity, as well as each program's net cost 
(total cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the County's taxpayers by each of these functions. 

Public Safety 
Public Health 
Transportation 
Economic Assistance and 

Opportunity 

2020 
Total Cost 
of Services 
$ 10.0 
$ 7.1 
$ 19.4 

$ 39.2 

Table 3 - Governmental 
Activities ( ln Millions) 

Net Cost 
of Services 
$ 8.8 
$ 2.1 
$ 12.4 

$ 23.0 

Total Cost 
of Services 
$ 11.4 
$ 5.8 
$ 20.3 

$ 38.9 

2019 
Net Cost 

of Services 
$ 10.2 
$ 1.6 
$ 11.6 

$ 20.7 

The County's Proprietary Funds consist of the Enterprise Sewer Fund and the Workers' Compensation 
Fund (WCF). The basic financial statements for the funds are included in this report. Because the focus on 
business-type funds is a cost of service measurement or capital maintenance, we have included these funds 
in Table 4, which demonstrates assets, net position, and changes in net position. 

Total Assets 
Net Position 
Changes in Net Position 

Table 4 - Business-Type Activities 
(In Millions) 

2020 
Sewer WCF 

$ 4.8 $ 7.7 
$ (0.4) $ 0.0 
$ (0.7) $ 0.0 

See Jndependent Auditor's Report. 
5 

2019 
Sewer 

$ 5.5 
$ 0.2 
$ (0.5) 

WCF 
$ 7.7 
$ 0.0 
$ 0.0 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

5. FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The County's major funds begins on Page 12 and provides detailed information about the most significant 
funds - not the County as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law; however, the 
County Legislature may establish other fonds to help it control and manage money for pmticular purposes. 
The County's three types of funds - Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiducimy - use different accounting 
approaches. 

Governmenial Fund~ - Most of the County's basic services are repo1ted in Governmental Funds, which 
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available 
for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be conve1ied to cash. The 
Governmental Fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County's general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental Fund information helps you determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 
County's programs. We describe the relationship (of differences) between governmental activities 
(reported in the statement of net position and the statement of activities) and Governmental Funds in a 
reconciliation on pages 12 and 14. 

Proprietary Fund~ - When the County charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the County - these services are generally reported in Proprietary Funds. 
Proprietary Funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the statement of net assets 
and the statement of activities. In fact, the County's Enterprise Funds (a component of Proprietary Funds) 
are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more 
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for Proprietary Funds. These financial statements 
begin on page 15. 

Fiducimy Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the County's own programs. The basic fidt1ciary fund 
financial statements can be found beginning on page J 8 of this report. 

6. FUND FINANCIAL AN AL YSIS 

As the County completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 12) 
reported a combined fund balance of $40,620,907 which decreased by $4,112,343 from last year's total of 
$44,733,250. The primary reason for the decrease is the County continuing to spend down funds 
transferred from the General Fund (sales tax revenues set aside) for the ongoing public safety facility 
project which was nearing completion at December 31, 2020. 

A comparative overview of the Governmental Funds results for 2020 and 2019 follows. This includes 
more detailed information about sources and uses of funds in each year. 

Real Property Tax $ 
Non Property Tax 
Departmental Jncome, Fees, 

and Interest 
State and Federal Aid 
All Other Sources 

Total Revenues $ 

Table 5 - Herkimer County Governmental Funds 

2020 
Revenues 

27.4 
36.2 

11.3 
28.6 

2.3 
105.8 

Summary of Revenues and Expenditures 
2020 and 2019 (Ln Millions) 

2020 2019 
% of Total Revenues 

25.9 $ 28.7 
34.2 35.4 

10.7 12.5 
27.0 31.2 

2.2 2. 1 
100.0 $ 109.9 

See Independent Auditor's Repo11. 
6 

2019 
% of Total 

26.1 
32.2 

11.4 
28.4 

1.9 
lilll.ll 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

2020 2020 2019 
Exgenditures % of Total Ex11enditures 

General Governmental 
Support $ 19.9 I 8. I $ 18.7 

Education 5.9 5.4 6.2 

Public Safety 19.3 L 7.6 38.8 
Public Health 6.1 5.6 5.4 
Transportation 17.8 16.2 20.6 
Economic Assistance and 

Opportunity 36.0 32.7 37.5 
Culture and Recreation 0.6 0.5 0.8 

Home and Community 
Services 1.1 1.0 1.2 

Debt Service 3.2 2.9 3.2 

Total Expenditures $--1..0-2.,2 100.Q $ 132..4 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

2019 
% of Total 

14.1 
4.7 

29.3 
4.2 

15.6 

28.3 
0.6 

0.9 
7 ~ 
_,.) 

100.0 

The statement on page 65 shows both adopted and final modified budget totab compared with actual 
results for the General Fund in 2020. The significant variances between tl1e original and the final budget 
for 2020 were as follows: 

Adopted Budget 
Encumbrance Can-yovers 

Original Budget 
Appropriations from Transfers 
Appropriations from Fund Balance 

and Reserves 
Supplemental Appropriations from 

Additional Revenue 
Final Budget 

$ 

$ 

93,390,447 
313 506 

93,703,953 
18,780 

12,248,739 

11,045.2?6 
117.Qlu .. 6.2a 

8. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATlON 

Capital Assets 

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the County's Governmental Activities had a total cost of$216,864,825 
and $198,350,434, respectively, invested in a broad range of capital assets including equipment, a jail, 
buildings, roads, and bridges (see page 37). At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the County's Business-Type 
Activities had a total cost of $17,383,253 and $17,297,432, respectively, in sewer lines and plant (see page 
38). 

I3uildings and Improvements 
Machinery, Equipment, Vehicles & Other 
lnfrastrncture 
Construction in Progress 

Totals $ 

Table 6- Capital Assets at Year End 
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation, In Millions) 

2020 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Totals 
8.2 0.8 9.0 
8.5 2.3 l 0.8 

62.8 0.8 63.6 
40.9 0.0 4Q_g 

1.20.4 $ 3.9 s 124.3 

Sec Independent Auditor's Report. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Buildings and Improvements 
Machinery, Equipment, Vehicles & Other 
Infrastructure 
Construction in Progress 

Totals 

Bollfls 

Table 6 - Capital Assets at Year End 
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation. In Millions) 

Governmental 
Activities 

8.6 
6.7 

63.3 
29.4 

$ 108,.Q_ 

2019 
Business-Type 

Activities 
0.9 
2.6 
0.8 
0.0 

$ 4.3 

Totals 
9.5 
9.3 

64.1 
29.4 

$ 112.3 

At year end, the County had $45,782,302 in bonds outstanding. 

General Obligation Revenue Bonds 

General Obligation Revenue Bonds 
(Backed by Specific Revenues) 

9. ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET 

Table 7 - Outstanding Bonds at Year End 
(In Millions) 

Governmental Business-Type 2020 

$ 

Activities Activities Totals 

43.3 $ 2.5 $ 45.8 

Table 7 - Outstanding Bonds at Year End 
(In Millions) 

Governmental Business-Type 2019 
Activities Activi.ties Totals 

$ 44.3 $ 2.8 $ 47.1 

There are many factors that play a role in influencing County budgets across New York State. They 
include, but are not limited to, the actions of New York State as it continues to mandate programs and cut 
reimbursement, the economic climate of the County as well as New York State, the property values for 
2021, cost increases and decreases for the necessities to run the County government, and this past year and 
a halfCOVID-19. 

These factors were taken into consideration by the Legislature in formulating our 2021 budget. The budget 
for 2021 is $102,734,708 as compared to the 2020 budget of$103,229,692. That equates to a decrease of 
.48% from 2020. The County tax rate for 2021 is $4.88 per thousand, down $0.27 from 2020. The 
properly tax levy is stable at 25,772,406. Once again, the County did not use any Tobacco funds toward 
our 2021 budget, and no use of fund balance from the General Fund. No use of General Fund Dollars is in 
sync with our plan to stop allocation of General Fund Dollars, effective in 2018. 

Remington Arms LLC has emerged from the bankruptcy sale and has 300 employees working, with plans 
to increase that number over the next few years. Our Frankfort Industrial Park continues to do well with 
over 800 employees in the Park. The IDA has two new tenants for our Schuyler Business Park. Pepsi and 
The Fountainhead Group have started their projects and we anticipate completion in 2022. This past 
month, Amazon announced the purchase in Frankfort North Park to locate a last mile site which will 
employee 300 new employees this year. We are seeing industrial development in the City of Little Falls, 
downtown development in the Villages of Ilion and Herkimer, and new interest from developers to create 
residential housing. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The County has fared well financially since COVID-19 hit last March. We ended the year with a .77% 
increase in sales tax and over a $2 million addition to our unassigned fund balance. This current year, we 
arc seeing a 25% increase over last year's first 6 months. We believe at the end of 2021, we will add 
additional few million dollars to our unassigned fund balance. 

[n summary, we added to our fund balance in 2020 and expect another increase to our fund balance in 
2021 due to the conservative practices of the Legislature and great management by our department heads 
and staff. We continue to pursue new daycare options. A program with HCCC and Albany Can Code to 
develop a coding program for unemployed/underemployed individuals. Lastly, we are running out ofland 
in our industrial parks and are looking to add another industrial park by 2022. 

American Rescue Plan of2021 

r n March 2021 Congress passed and President Bid en signed into law the American Rescue Plan of 2021. 
The County was awarded $11,985,388 half of which it received in May 2021 and the other half of which it 
will receive sometime in 2022. 

The stated goals of the Plan are: 

• Suppo11 urgent COVID-19 response efforts to continue to decrease spread of the virus and bring the 
pandemic under control 

• Replace lost revenue for eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments to strengthen support 
for vital public services and help retain jobs 

• Support immediate economic stabilization for households and businesses 
• Address systemic public health and economic challenges that have contributed to the unequal impact 

of the pandemic 

The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide substantial flexibility for each government 
to meet local needs-including support for households, small businesses, impacted industries, essential 
workers, and the communities hardest hit by the crisis. These funds can also be used to make necessary 
investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure. 

10. CONT ACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with 
a general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact James 
Wallace, County Administrator, or Kimberlee Enea, County Treasurer, 109 Mary Street Suite 2419, 
Herkimer, New York, 13350. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMF.R, I\EW YORK 

STATEMENT OF I\ET POSlTlON 

December 31, 2020 

\'rima!Y Government 

Governmental Business-Type Cnrnpo11cnt 
Activities Act[vities Total Units 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Eqt1ivalents $ 22,928,934 $ 5,287,051 $ 28,215.985 $ 17,000,782 

Restricted Cash 10,579,001 478.502 11,057,503 148,!59 

Deposits With lrustecs 1,141,449 1,141,449 

Investments 5,918,161 

Receivables 

Taxes Recciv"blc (Net) 10,983,562 I 0,983,562 

Student J .nan, and Fees Receivable (Net) 839,960 

Other Receivables 4,956,581 218,276 5,174.857 521,168 

Due From 

Other Governments 13,091,191 2,602,840 J 5,694,03 I 737,885 

Governmental funds 3,275 3.275 127.470 

Proprietary Funds 67,530 67.530 

Other Ass els 43,266 43 ,266 l 73,684 

Capital Assets, Net or Accmm1lated Depreciation 120,363,234 3,909,655 124,272.889 27 328,577 

Total Assets l 84 154 748 J 2.499 599 196.654.347 52 795 846 

Deferred Outllows of Resources 

Deferred Amounts From Refunding Debt, Net 94,445 94.445 

Pension 12,486,726 263,J 64 12,749,890 J,040,422 

Other Pos\cmployment I3enefits 31389864 716,345 32,106 209 6,413,813 

Total Deform! Outtlows of Resources 43,971 035 979.509 44,950,544 9.454.235 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows ofReso,irccs s 228 p5·7SJ. $ 13 479 JOS Ll.i.L.(~ $ ti225QQR,l 

Liabilities 

Accounts Pay~ble $ 7,590,950 $ 65,587 $ 7,656,537 $ 1,792,659 

Retainagc Payable 1,399,442 1,399,442 

Accrued LiD bilities 465,955 8.338 474,293 

Due To 

Other Governments I 1,923,637 11,923,637 

Governmental f1Jnds 67,530 67.530 

Proprietary Funds 3,275 3,275 

Related Organizntion 425,097 

Unearned Revenue 214,284 214,284 1,834,233 

NoncurrCllt Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 2,058,428 297,260 2,355,688 1,205,272 

Due in More Than One Year '203.296.4 1.6 13 441 901 216.738.3]7 58,799,3(~1 

Tomi Liabilities 226 952:387 13.880616 240 833.003 64 056.625 

Deferred Inflows ot· Rcsou rces 
Unapplicd Payments: PELL and TAP 3,112 

Pension 641,064 13.688 654.752 241,041 

Other Postcmployment Benefits 7.650.614 

Tot;il Deterred !11tlows of Resources 641-064 13688 654.752 7,894,767 

Tolal Li~hilities and Defcrrc<l Inflows of Resources 227,593,451 J 3,8!14,304 241 ,487.755 7 J ,95!,392 

Net Position 

Net Investment in Capital A.ssets 76,923,819 J ,382,395 78,306,214 19,915,630 

Restricted For 

Spee i" I Purpose, 12,835,168 478,502 13,313,670 

Trusts and Endowments: 

1-:xpen<lablc 12,076,063 

None:scpenduble 1,201,786 

Unrcstric!cd (Deficit} (89 .226.655) (2,276 093! {91 502.748) i 4;1.,894. 790) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) 532,332 (415,196) 117,136 (9,701.31 I) 

Tot.ii Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Rcsour<cs ,md Net Position s 228 125 783 s 13 ;l2Q.jQ,_~ $ 2,JJ 604 891 $ 62,25.Q.Qfil 

Tile Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part ofThese Financial Statement, 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Fnr tlw v .. ~r F.n<ll'<l n .. ~ .. mhH Jl, 2020 

Pro!l!:am Revem1es Net (Exeense) Revenue and Chan~es in Net Position 

Opernting Prima!)'. Government 

Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component 
~ enscs Services Contributions Activities i\ctiv ities Total Units 

Primary Government 
Governmental Activities 

General Government Support $ 22,324,367 $ 5,021,002 $ 3,101,449 $ (14,201,916) S $ (14,201,916} 

Education 5,914,457 1,464,086 (4,450,371) (4,450,371) 

Public Salety 10,020,523 607,423 624,857 (8,788,243) (8,788,243) 

Puhlic Health 7,062,946 893,984 4,039,314 (2)29,648) (2,129,648) 

Transportation 19,402,576 2,116,802 4,854,351 (12,431,423) (12,431,423) 

Economic Assistance and Opportunity 39,163,111 2,508,872 13,664,742 (22,989,497) (22,989,497) 

Culture and Recreation 714,974 33,820 261,802 (419)52) (419,352) 

Home and Community Services 1,089,778 215352 1,461.336 586,910 586,910 

Unallocated l11tcres1 011 Long-term Debt 2209.149 (2.209.149} (2 ?09.149) 

Total Governmental Activities 107.9()1,881 l U97.255 29,471,937 (67,()32-689) (6 7 .032.689) 

Bus i11es,-Type i\ctivitie., 

Sewer Fund 2,194,517 L527,66 l (666,856) (666,856) 

\Vorkers' Compensation Fund 590.463 535.460 (55 ,003) (~5.003) 

Tot,11 Business-Type Activities 2 184 ,280 2 063 121 (721,859) (721,859} 

Total Primary Government $ 110 686.861 $ 13,460,376 $ 2947L937 (67,032 689) (721,&59) (67,754,548) 

Component Units 
Comnumity College $ 31,192,622 $ 9,933,343 $ 20,677,568 $ (581,711) 

HCIDA 1.568,418 251 468 lJK8;363 (29. 147) 

Total Componc111 Un its $ 32,761,600 $ !0184811 $ 21,965,931 (610,858) 

Genera I Revenues 
Property Taxes, Levied for Gern:ral Purposes 25,731,624 25,731,624 

Real Pruper(y T~x Items 2,061,658 2,061,658 

Nonpropcrty Tax Items (Sales Tax and PILOTs) 36,193,080 36,193,080 

Tohacco Settlement Revenue 1,003,720 1,003,720 

Interest Income 416.143 62.829 478,972 130 402 

Total General Revenues 65.406.2]j_ 6U2.9 65~462,()5'\ 130.402 

Change in Net Position (1,626.464) {659.030) (2.2~5 .494] (480.456) 

Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year 2,158,796 243,834 2,402,630 (9,320,855) 
Prior Period Adjustment 100,000 

Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year. Restated 2,158,796 243,834 2.402.630 ,(9,220,855) 

Net Position (Deticit), End of Year $ 532,332 $ (415.196) $ 117 136 s (9.701,311) 

The /\ceompanying Noles ,ire nn lnkgrul P,1rl ol"Th~se Finnncial Sialcmcnls. 
II 



COCi\"TY OF HERKIMER, ."IEW YOIH( 

l!ALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

()NCLUUl.'IG THE RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERN:VIEl\TAL 

Fl:NO BAL\'ICE TO :'\ET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES) 

DecelJlber 31, 2020 

Other 

County Governmentn I 

Gcncr~I Road Ca~ital 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,419,272 $ 2;008,251 $ $ 

Restricted C~sh 5,578,660 3,099,836 240,033 

Deposits With Trustees 

Taxe~ ReceivDble (Net) 10,983,562 

Other Receivables 4,937,622 2,361 

Due From 

Other Governments 10)72,978 1,481,098 769)44 

Governmental Funds l ,265.664 6,365 

Proprietary Fund 67;530 

Other Asset, 530.387 74 150 

Total Assets $ 51 555,675 $ 6.671,061 $ 1,009.177 $ 

Lis hili ties 

Accounts Payahle $ 6;934)94 $ 269,437 $ 251,295 $ 

Accrued Liabilities 393;624 49,009 

Due To 
Other Governments 10)38,839 949,696 235,102 

Governmental Funds 20;615 328,410 773;617 

Propriet~ry Fund 3)75 

Unearned Revenue 180 184 34.100 

Total Liabilities 1g)67,556 !_630.652 l,263.289 

Deferred In flows of Resuu rces 

Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes 3,507,489 

Other Unavailable Revcn11es 

Total Deferred lnllows or Rc,ourccs 3.507 489 

Fund Balunce 

Nonspendable 530,387 74,150 

Restricted 5,578,660 3,099,836 13)90 

Assigned 338,469 I ,867,423 

Unassigned (Deficit) 23 283 l 14 /267.502) 

Total Fund B~lance (Deficit) 29.780 6JO 5,041.402 (254.112) 

Total Liabilities, Dcfcrre<.I Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balnnce $ 51 555.615 $ 6 672 061 $ I 009 177 $ 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ofnel position arc different due to the following: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not financial 

resources and therefore me not reported in the funds 

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are recognized in 

the Statement of Net Position and are deferred inflows in tl1e fund financial statements. 

Proponionate share of long-term liability, deferred inflows, and deterred outflows 
associated wilh participation in the state retirement system are not current financial 

resources or obi igations and are nol reported in the funds 

Long-term liabilities, including honus payable, postemployment bene filx, rctainagc payable, 

compensated absences, deferred amounts from refunding of dehl, and accrued workers 

compcnsmion are not due and puyable in lhe current period and therefore arc not reported in the funds. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The Accompanying Notes arc an Integrul Part of These Financial Statements. 
12 

Funds 

3,501;411 

1,660;472 

1.141.449 

16,598 

67,971 

14,250 

41.783 

6.443,93~ 

135,924 

23,322 

163,637 

322.883 

68.071 

68,071 

41,783 

4,156,672 

1,918,430 

(63.905) 

6 052.980 

61~43 _93,1 

Total 

$ 22,nS,934 
10,579,001 

Ll41,449 

10.983.562 

4;956,58 I 

13;091,197 

I ,186,279 

67,530 

646.320 

$ 65 680.847 

$ 7,590,950 

465,955 

I 1;923,637 

I )86,279 

3,275 
214,284 

21;484380 

3,507,489 
68071 

3.575.560 

646,320 

12,848,558 

4,174,322 

22 951.707 

40,620;907 

120,363,234 

3,575,560 

(5.744, 197) 

(158.2~3 172) 

i 532.332 



COU.'iTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATEMEN"f OF REVENIJES, EXPENDITURES, A:\D CHANGES[\' FUND BAI.Al\CES 

ALL GOVERN:VIEt'iTAL Fl!NDS 

For· the Yc:1r E11ded Dccrn1bcr 31, 2020 

County 
General Road CaIJilal 

Revenues 
Real Prope1ty Taxes $ 25,344,550 $ $ 

Real Property Tax Items 2,061,658 

Non property Tax Items 35,193,080 l,000,000 

Departmental Income 6,138,949 

lntcrgovemmenlal Charges 1, l 82,505 1,497,754 

Use of Money and Property 1,033,353 7,586 

Licenses and Permits 27,3 IO 

Fines and Forfeiture, l 16.065 5,995 

Sale of Property ~nd Compensation for Loss 44.568 4.455 

Miscellaneous Locnl Sources 1,465,344 

Intcrfund Revenues 62,498 15,819 

State Aid 10.427,599 2,923,336 1,738,560 

Federal Aid 9.703.351 1.931 Ql~ 

Total Revenues 92,800,830 7,385,960 1,738,560 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers from Other Funds 18.789 9.487.698 15 144.655 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 92.819,619 16 873 658 16,883,.2 I 5 

Expenditures 
General Governmental Support 19,553,095 295,117 

Education 5,893,280 

Public Safety 8,915,075 10,359,417 

Public Health 6,099,324 

Transportation 11,939,157 3,685,638 

Economic Assistance and Opportunity 35,168,807 

Culture and Recreation 597,290 

Home and Community Services 595,049 

Debt Service Principal 

Debt Service Interest and Related Expenses 

Total Expenditures 76,821,920 11,939,157 14,340,172 

Other Finaocing Uses 
Transfers to Other Funds 24.463.46] 4 007 759 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 101.2&5 381 15.946.916 14.340.172 

Excess {Deficit) Re,•enues and Other Financing Sources 
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (8,465,762) 926,742 2,543,043 

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of ·11car 38.246.392 4,114,667 (2,797,155) 

Fund Balance (Deficit), E11d of Year $ 21) . 780.630 $ 5,041.409 $ (254, 112} 

The Accompanying Noles are an Integral Part of The,e Financial Statements. 
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Other 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 

34,558 

157,481 

1,119,025 

163,878 

562,200 

1,213,286 

644 494 

3,894,922 

3,820,087 

7 715.009 

26,109 

2,158,994 

889,049 

1,395 

494,729 
1,830,000 

1 431.090. 

6,831,366 

9 
6.83 1.375 

883,634 

5,169346 

~ 6.0:52,280 

Total 

$ 25,344,550 

2,061,658 

36, l 93,080 

6,173,507 

2,680,259 

I, 198,420 

27,310 

122,060 

1,168,048 

1,629,222 

640,517 

16,302,781 

12,27~.860 

105,820,272 

28 471.229 

134 291.501 

19,874,321 

5,893,280 

19,274,492 

6,099,324 

17,783,789 

36,057,856 

598,685 

1,089,778 

1,830,000 

1431 090 

109,932,6 l 5 

28 471 229 

138.403 844 

(4,112,343) 

44,733,250 

$ 40,620.907 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND 

EXPENDITURES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Net Changes in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds 

Capita] outlays to purchase or build capital a:;sets are reported in governmental funds 

as expenditures. However, for governmental activities, those costs arc shown in the 

St11lemenl of Net Position and allocated over their useful lives as depreciation expense in 

the Statement of Activities. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeds 

depreciation expense in the period. 

Capital Outlays 

Depreciation Expen~e 

I fond proceeds prov idc current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt 

increases long-tern, liabilities in the Statement ofNet Position. Repayments of bond principal 

is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the payment reduces long-lerm liabilities in the 

Statement of Net Position. This is the amount of repayments and amortization of related 

premiums. 

Repayment of Bond Prim:ipal 

Amortization of Bond Premium 

Cl11mges in the proportionate share of net pension expense reported in the Statement of Activities 

do not provide for or require the use of current financial resources and therefore me not reported 

as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Certain expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 

resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Increase in Accreted Interest 

Increase in Accrued Interest 

Net lncreasc in Other Postemployment Benefits 

Net Increase in Compensated Ahsences 
Amortized Interest on Bond Refunding 

Revenues that do not provide current financial resources are recognized in the Statement 
of Activities but not in the fund financial statements. 

Change in Net Position Governmental Activities 

Property Taxes 
Other Revenues 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements. 
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17,666,931 

(6. 19 1.326) 

1,830,000 

10.739 

(744,447) 

(17Ji84) 

(7.276, 186) 

(46,430) 
(26 667) 

387,074 
68.071 

$ 

$ 

(4,112,343) 

11,475,605 

1,840,739 

(3,174,196) 

(8,1 J l,414) 

455. 145 

I 1.626 464) 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROl'RIETARY FUNDS 

Occcmber 31, 2020 

Workers' 

Enterprise Compensation 
Sewer Fund Fund 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 212,062 $ 5,074,989 

Restricted Cash 478,502 

Accounts Receivable 218,276 

Due From Other Governments 2,602,840 

Due From Governmental Funds 3,275 

Capital Assets (Net) 3.909.655 

Total Assets 4,821.770 7,677,829 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension 263,164 

Other Postemploymcnt Benefits 716.345 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 979.509 

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 5.801.2.,12 $ 7.677.829 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 50,216 $ 15,371 

Accrued Liabilities 8.338 

Due to Governmental Funds 67,530 

Noncurrent Li abilities 

Due Within One Year 297,260 

Due in More Than One Year 5.779.443 7.662.458 

Total I ,iahilities 6.202.787 7.677,829 

Deferred Inflow of Resources - Pension 13.688 

Net Position 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,382,395 

Restricted For Special Purposes 478,502 

Unrestricted (Deficit) (2.276,()93) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) (41 5. 196) 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net Position $ 5.801 .279 ~ Z ~zz,s22 

The Accompanying Notes arc an Integral Part of These Finun~ial Statements. 
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Total 

$ 5,287,051 

478,502 

218,276 

2,602,840 

3,275 

3.909.655 
12,499,599 

263,164 

716 345 

979.509 

$ 13 ..J.79. I 08 

$ 65,587 

8,338 

67,530 

297,260 

13.441.901 

13,880.616 

13 688 

1,382,395 

478,502 

(2.276,093) 

(415,196) 

~ 1:Hz2, l!l~ 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Workers' 

Enterprise Compensation 
Sewer Fund Fund 

Operatiog Revenue 

Departmental Charges $ 1,247,388 $ 

Intergovernmental Charges 278,533 275,276 

Miscellaneous 1.740 

Total Operating Revenue I 527.661 275.276 

Operating Expenses 

Personal Services 383,234 

Employee Benefits 555,289 

Contractual Expenses 291,636 590,463 

Operations and Maintenance 352,041 

Depreciation Expense 524 728 

Total Operating Expenses 2,106,928 590 463 

Net Operating (Loss) (579.267) (3 I 5,187) 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 

Use of Money and Property 7,826 55,003 

Compensation for Loss 260,184 

Debt Service Interest (87,589) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (79,763) 315.187 

Net (Loss) (659,030) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 243 834 

Net Position (Deficit), End of Year $ (4 15,1 96) 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These financial Statements. 
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Total 

$ !,247,388 

553,809 

1.740 

1.802.937 

383,234 

555,289 

882,099 

352,041 

524 728 

'.! 697.39 1 

(894.454) 

62,829 

260,184 

(81.589} 
235 424 

(659,030) 

243.834 

~ (415. IQl'i) 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, i'IEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Enterprise 
Sewer Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activilies 

Cash Received from Providing Services $ 1,498,l 19 $ 

Ca,h Payments for Contractual Expenses (628,400) 

Cash Payments for Personal Services and Benefits (713.505) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 156.214 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Principal Payments on Debt (275,000) 

lnterest Payments on Debt (88,737) 

Payments to Contractors (85,820) 

Transfers to/from Primary Government 5.874 

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (443.683) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

lrttcrcst on Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,826 

Proceeds from Compensation for Loss 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 7.826 

Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents, 

and Restricted Cash (279,643) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 970.207 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year $ 690.564 ,~ 

Workers' 

Compensalion 
Fund 

275,276 

(597,616) 

(322.340) 

55,003 

198.824 

253.827 

(68,513) 

5.1 43.502 

5.074.989 

Reconciliation of Net Operating (Loss) to Net C>1sh Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Net Operating (Loss) $ (579,267) $ 

Adjustment to Reconc;ile Net Operating (Loss) lo Net Cash 

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Depreciation Expense 524,728 

Change in Postemployment Benefits 155,357 

Change in Pension Expense for GASE 68 67,774 

Change in Compensated Absences (1,477) 

(h,crease) Decrease in Assets Other Than Cash 

Accounts Receivable (29,542) 

Prepaid Pension Expense (260) 

Increase (Decrease) in Li abilili es 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 18.901 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 156.214 $ 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pan of These Financial Statements. 
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(315,187) 

(7,153) 

Q,2 14Q) 

Total 

$ 1,773,395 

(1,226,016) 

(713.505) 

066.126) 

(275,000) 

(88,737) 

(85,820) 

5.874 

(443.683) 

62,829 

198.824 
261.653 

(348,156) 

6.113.709 

$ 5,765.553 

$ (894,454) 

524,728 

155,357 

67,774 

(1,477) 

(29,542) 
(260) 

11.748 

iii ( t66.1 2!2l 



Assets 

COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

December 31, 2020 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Liabilities 

Accrued Liabilities 

Due to Local Governments 
Total Liabilities 

Net Position 

Restricted for: 
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments 

$ 

$ 

Custodinl 
Funds 

l:W,OCJJ 

1, 148,7-94 

7 13.6 1.0 
l .862A 01~ 

691 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part ofThese Financial Statements. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

ST A TEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Additions 

Real Property Tax Collections for Other Governments $ 

Sales Tax Collections for Other Governments 

Fee Collections for Other Governments 

Interest 

Miscellaneous 

Total Additions 

Deductions 

Payments of Real Property Tax to Other Governments 

Payments of Sales Tax Collections to Other Governments 

Payments of Fees to Other Governments 

Payments to New York State 

Payments to Other Entities 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle 

Net Position, Beginning of Year (Restated) 

Net Position, End of Year $ 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Pait of These Financial Statements. 
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Custodial 

Funds 

231,345 

4,893,100 

l 2,997,277 

986 

I 506 017 

19 628 725 

231,345 

5,371,421 

6,005,113 

6,840,028 

I 492 685 
19,940,592 

(3 I 1,867) 

0 
3 1? 558 

3 12.558 

g2J 



f:Ol!NTY OF HElUOMER, 'IEW YORK 

STATEME"T OF \ET POSITION - DISCRETELY 

PRESE~TED COYIPONENT l:NITS 

December 31, 2020 

Community 
College 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,665,199 $ 

Restricted Cash 

Jnvestmenls 5,918,161 

Recei va b ks 

Tuition and Fees Receivable (Net) 839,960 

Other Receivables 423,931 

Due From 

Other Govemmcnts 737,885 

Related Organization 127,470 

Other Assels 166,886 

Capital Assets (Net) 23.828.503 

Total Assets 48,707.995 

Dcfcrrctl Outflows of Resources 
Pension 2,943,431 

Other Postemployment Benefits 6, 100.592 

9 044.023 

Total Assets antl Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 57.752.018 s 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 1,643,436 $ 

Unearned Revenue 1,822,503 

Due to Related Organization 425,097 

Noncurrcnt Liahilities 

Due Within One Year I, 186,249 

Due in More Than One Year 54 823 830 

Total Liabilities 59.90 1.l 15 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Unapplied Payments: PELL and TAP 3,112 

Pension 238,362 

Other Postemployment Benefits 7.650614 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7.892.088 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 67 793.203 

Net Position 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 18,447,128 

Restricted 

Expendable 11,927,904 

Noncxpen<lable 1,201,786 

Unrestricted (Deficit) (41,618.003) 

Total N ct Position (Deficit) (10,041.185) 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 

and Net Position $ 57.752JJ I8 $ 

HCIDA 

335,.583 

148,159 

0 

97.237 

6,798 

3 500 074 

4,087.851 

96,991 
313 221 
410.212 

4.498.063 

149,223 

11,730 

I 9,023 

3.975 534 

4.155 510 

2,679 

2.679 

4. 158.189 

1,468.502 

148, 159 

I 1.276.787) 

339.874 

4.498.063 

The Accompanying N utes arc nn Integral Parl of These Financia 1 Statements. 
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Total 

$ 17,000,782 

148,159 

5,918,161 

839,960 

521,168 

737,885 

127,470 

173,684 

27.328-577 

52.795.846 

3,040,422 
6.4 13 8 13 
9.454,235 

$ 62.250.081 

$ 1,792,659 

1,834,233 

425,097 

1,205,272 

58.799.364 

64.956.625 

3,112 

241,041 

7.650.614 

7.894.767 

7 1.95 1.392 

19,915,630 

12,076.063 

1,201,786 

( 42.894,790} 

(9.701.3 11 ) 

$ 62.250.1)81 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET 

POSITION - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Ye,ir Ended December 31, 2020 

Community 
College HCIDA 

Operating Revenues 
Student Tuition and Fees (Net) $ 5,708,197 $ 

Federal Grants and Contracts 900,594 

State and Local Grants and Contracts 181,019 100,000 

Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 3,742 

Auxiliary Enterprises 

Residential Life 2,241,478 

Faculty Student Association Service Fees 582,405 

Other Operating Revenues IAOL263 25 1.468 

Total Operating Revenues 11 018 698 351 468 

Operating Expenses 
Educational and General Expenditures 23,064,875 

Scholarships and Fees 4,085,408 

Faculty Student Association 436,851 

Housing Corporation Program Services 2,439,446 

Other Deductions 494,692 

Depreciation 998.169 77.199 

Total Operating Expenses 31024749 571 891 

Operating (Loss) (20,006,051) (220-423) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
State Operating Aid 5,919,810 

County Chargebacks 4,105,752 

Local Appropriations 1,830,612 

Non-operating Grants 7,106,051 1,188,363 

Investment Income 130,217 185 

Interest Expense ( I ,732) 

Net County Capital Asset Related Debt Reimbursement (I 67,873) 

Other Nonoperating Revenues 533,988 
Other Nonoperating Expenses (995.355) 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 19 458 557 191 461 

(Loss) Before Capital Appropriations (547,494) (28,962) 

Capital Appropriations 96 000 

Net (Decrease) in Net Position (451-494) (28,962) 

Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year (9,589,691) 268,836 

Prior Period Adjustment 100.000 

Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year, Restated (9,589,691) 368 836 

Net Position (Deficit), End of Year $ Wl..Q:11,18~ ~ JJ2,W 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements. 
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Total 

$ 5,708,197 

900,594 

281,019 

3,742 

2,241,478 

582,405 

I 652.731 

I 1.370 166 

23,064,875 

4,085,408 

436,851 
2,439,446 

494,692 

1.075 . .368 

31 596 640 

(20,226,474) 

5,919,810 

4,l 05,752 

1,830,612 

8,294,414 
130,402 

(1,732) 
(167,873) 

533,988 
(995.355) 

19.650 018 

(576,456) 

96 000 

(480.456) 

(9,320,855) 

100.000 

(9,220,855) 

~ (9 701.3 11 l 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Background 

The County of Herkimer, New York, (the County) is governed by the Charter of the County of Herkimer, 
the County Law, other general laws or the Stare of New York, and various local laws and ordinances. 
The present County Charter provides for a County Executive form of government. 

The County Legislature, which is the legislative body responsible for the overall operation of the County, 
consists of 17 legislators, one from each of the County's legislative districts. The Chairman of the 
Legislature is the Chief Executive of the County. The County Treasurer is the Chief Fiscal Officer of the 
County and is elected for a four-year term. The County Administrator (every three years) and Auditor 
(every two years) are appointed by the Legislature. 

The County provides the following basic services: maintenance of County roads, economic assistance, 
parks and waterways, police and law enforcement, health and nursing services, waste water management 
facilities, and education through Herkimer County Community College. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying basic financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) for governments 
as prescribed by the Govemrnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the primary 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The basic financial statements have been prepared primarily from accounts maintained by the County. 
Additional data has been derived from repmts prescribed by the County Treasurer and prepared by 
component units based on independent or subsidiary accounting systems maintained by them. 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of the County (primary government) and organizations for 
which the primary government is financially accountable and the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from 
the government. 

Based on the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review of certain ent1t1es 
considered in detennining the County's reporting entity as a whole. These activities are included as 
discretely presented component units and blended component units of the primary government. 

{b) Discretely Presented Component Units 

Based on the foregoing criteria and the significant factors presented below, the following 
organizations are includable in tlie reporting entity: 

Herkimer County Community College (Community College) - The Community College is a two-year 
higher educational institution sponsored by the County of Herkimer and under the supervision of the 
State University of New York. The Community College is administered by a Board of Trustees 
consisting of ten voting members in which five are appointed and confirmed by the County 
Legislature, four by the Governor, and one student is elected by the student body. The Community 
College's budget is subject to the approval of the County Legislature, with the County providing 
substantial funding for the operation of the Community College. Title to the real property of the 
Community College rests with the County. Bonds and notes for Community College capital costs 
are issued by the County. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The Community College accounts for resources received and used in its own financial system which 
is independent of the County's centralized financial system. A fiscal year ending August 3 l is 
mandated by State law for the Community College. For this reason and also because of differences 
between accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for colleges and 
those of counties, the financial statements of the Community College are presented in a separate 
column in the basic financial statements of the County. All of the financial data for the Community 
College has been derived from the independently audired financial statements. Certain amounts have 
been reclassified to conform with the County's presentation. 

The Community College maintains an auxiliary service corporation known as the Faculty Student 
Association of Herkimer County Community College, Inc. (FSAHCCC). The FSAHCCC is a 
campus-based not-for-profit corporation which, as an independent contractor, operates, manages, 
and promotes educationally related services for the benefit of the campus community. All of the 
financial data for this corporation was derived from the FSAHCCC 's financial statements for its 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

The Community College also maintains a foundation known as Herkimer County College 
Foundation, Inc. (The Foundation). The Foundation is a tax-exempt foundation [under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 50l(c)(3)] established to receive and maintain funds to aid and advance the 
welfare, development, purposes, and programs of Herkimer County Community College and its 
students. AH of the financial data for this corporation was derived from the Foundation's financial 
statements for its fiscal year ended August 31, 2020. 

Also, Herkimer County Community College Housing Corporation (HCCCHC) is a not-for-profit 
corporation organized in New York State for the purpose of providing student resident facilities (on 
campus) at Herkimer County Community College. The primary source of revenue is from room rent 
charged to campus-based students. All of the financial data for this corporation was derived from the 
HCCCHC' s financial statements for its fiscal year ended August 31, 2020. 

Although each of these entities are separate and distinct legal entities, they carry out operations that 
are integrally related to the Community College and are, therefore, blended in the financial reporting 
entity of the Community College. 

Financial statements of the Community College and related entities can be obtained from the Vice­
President of Administrative Services at the HCCC's campus located at Reservoir Road, Herkimer, 
New York 13350. 

Herkimer County industrial Dt?Velopmenl Agency - The Herkimer County Industrial Development 
Agency (HCIDA) was created on October 5, I 970 by the New York State Legislature under the 
provisions of Chapter 4 IO of the l 970 Laws of New York Slate for the purpose of encouraging 
economic growth in the County of Herkimer. The Agency is exempt from federal, state, and local 
income taxes. The Agency is governed by a five-person Board of Directors appointed by the County 
Legislature and receives a significant portion of its operating funds from the County of Herkimer. 
The Agency maintains a December 31 year end. All of the financial information for the Agency has 
been derived from the independently audited financial statements and can be obtained from the 
Agency's administrative offices located on Washington Street, Herkimer, New York 13350. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Vear Ended December 31, 2020 

(c) Blended Component Units 

The following blended component units are reported as other governmental funds: 

Herkimer Tobacco Asset Sernritization Corporation - Herkimer Tobacco Asset Securitization 
Corporation (HTASC) is a not-for-profit corporation formed exclusively for the purpose of acquiring 
from the County of Herkimer, New York (County) all or any of the rights, titles, and interest of the 
County under the Master Settlement Agreement with respect to tobacco related litigation among 
various settling states and pa1ticipating manufacturers. HT ASC is an instrumentality of, but separate 
and apart from, the County. HTASC utilizes December 31, as its year end. 

In lieu of receiving the Tobacco Settlement Rights (TSR), HTJ\SC, in conjunction with the New 
York Counties Tobacco Trnst I, Trust IV, and Trust V issued Tobacco Settlement Pass-Through 
Bonds. The bonds have been issued to the Trust pursuant to an indenture between HT ASC and 
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company (the Trustee). 

HT ASC is primarily dependent on the future proceeds from the TSR to meet future obligations 
under the indenture agreement. 

The financial statements of HT ASC can be obtained at the Treasurer's Office of the County located 
at 109 Mary Street Suite 2419, Herkimer, New York 13350. 

Soil and Water Con~ervation District - The District was established in 1949 by a resolution of the 
Herkimer County Board of Supervisors to assist in the conservation of soil and water resources, to 
ensure watershed protection, to preserve the tax base and to promote the general welfare of Herkimer 
County. 

The District, a subdivision of the State of New York, is governed by a board of five directors 
designated by the County Legislature, with two members from the County Board of Legislators, one 
from the Grange, one from the Fann Bureau, and the fifth member representing the urban, suburban, 
and rural nonfarm landowners. The District utilizes December 31 as its year end. The financial 
information for the Conservation District can be obtained from the Conservation District's 
Administrative Office on State Route 5, Herkimer, New York 13350. 

Basis of Presentation 

( a) Basic Fintmcia/ Statements - Government-Wide Statements 

The County's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the County as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the County's major funds). Both the government­
wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business 
type. The County's police, maintenance of County roads, public works, health and nursing services, 
educational activities, and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. 
The County's Sewer Fund and Workers' Compensation fund are classified as business-type 
activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns {a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are repotted on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as 
long-term debt and obligations. The County's net position is reported in three parts: net investment 
in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. The County first utilizes restricted resources to finance 
qualifying activities. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
County's functions and business-type activities. The functions are also suppmied by general 
government revenues (prope1iy, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, 
permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be 
directly associated with the function or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating­
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects 
capital-specific grants, if applicable. All direct expenses incurred are charged to the corresponding 
function. Capital asset additions that cannot be identified to a specific function are allocated based 
on total expenses by program. 

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) arc normally covered by genernl revenue 
(property, sales or gas taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). 

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change 
in the County's net position resulting from the current year's activities. 

(I,) Basic Financial Statements - Fund Fi11a11cial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, including its fiduciary 
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fond category - governmental, 
proprietary, and fiduciary- are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on all major 
governmental funds, as well as enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining 
governmental and proprietary fonds are aggregated and rep01ied as nonmajor fonds. GASB sets forth 
minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either 
fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental fund types arc those through which most governmental 
functions are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and the 
related liabilities are accounted for through governmental fund types. The measurement focus of the 
governmental fund types is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial 
position, rather than upon the flow of economic resources. The following are the County's major 
governmental funds: 

• General Fund - the principal operating fund that includes all operations not required to be recorded 
in other funds. 

• County Road Fund - to account for the repairs and maintenance of County roads in accordance 
with New York State laws. 

• Capital F und - used to account for the acquisition, construction, and/or reconstruction of major 
capital assets. 

In addition to the Herkimer Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation and Soil Water Conservation 
District, the County reports the following as other governmental funds: 

The following are the County's non-major governmental funds: 

• Special Grant Fund - to account for the use of Federal monies received under the Workforce 
Investment Act. 

• Road Machinerv Fund - to account for the purchase of highway machinery and equipment in 
accordance with New York State laws. 

• Debt Service Fund - used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 
general long-tenn debt principal, interest, and related costs ( except for those presented in the 
discretely presented component units). 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Pl'oprietary Fund~ - The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating 
income, changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable are those similar to businesses in the 
private sector. Operating and non-operating revenues are defined based on how individual 
transactions are categorized for purposes of preparing a statement of cash flows using GASB. 
Transactions for which cash flows are repo1ied as capital and related financing activities, non-capital 
financing activities, or investing activities normally would not be reported as components of 
operating income. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the County: 

• Enterprise Sewer Fund - used to account for the operations of the Sewer District. Enterprise funds 
are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for 
goods or services and the activity; (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of 
the net revenues; (b) has third-party requirements that the cost of providing services, including 
capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or; (c) establishes fees and charges based on a 
pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. 

• Workers ' Compensation F und - accounts for operations that provide services to other depa11ments 
or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The 
Internal Service Fund is used to account for the operations of the workers' compensation 
self-insurance program. 

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for and report assets held in a custodial 
capacity for others and therefore, are not available to support County programs. The County's 
Fiduciary fund consists of only the Custodial Fund. These activities are not included in the 
government-wide financial statements, because their resources do not belong to the County and are 
not available to be used. 

Measurement Focus and Basi.~ of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fond financial statements are reported using 
the economic resources, measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred regardless of the timing of the cash 
flow. In addition, the Community College, Herkimer Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation, and the 
Herkimer Industrial Development Agency are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Modified Accrual Basis - The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the 
current period or within 60 days after ye<Jr -end. Effective December 31, 2020, the County amended this 
policy to 180 days after year-end, excluding property tax collections. Expenditures are generally 
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded when the payment is due. 

Accrual Basis - Proprietary and fiduciary fund types and discretely presented component units are 
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues including unbilled 
amounts are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of the timing ofrelated cash inflows and outflows. Capital assets, the related outstanding debt 
and other long-term liabilities related to activities of the proprieta1y and fiduciary fund types, and the 
discretely presented component units, are recorded within these fund types. 
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COUNTY OF HERKlMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from the proprietary funds' principal operations, 
providing services and producing and delivering goods. Non-operating revenues and expenses are 
reported as capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities, or investing activities 
which normally would not be reported as components of operating income. 

Enterprise funds apply all applicable GASI3 pronouncements unless those pronouncements conflict with 
or contradict GASB pronouncements: Statements and Interpretations of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (F ASB), Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research 
Bulletins (ARBs) of the Committee on Accounting Procedures. The County has elected not to adopt the 
option as allowed by paragraph 7 of GASE No. 20 to adopt all FASB pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989. 

E~·timates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the repo1ted revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are made in a variety of areas, 
including computation of encumbrances, compensated absences, net pension liabilities, deferred inflows 
and outflows of resources- pensions, other postemployment benefits, potential contingent liabilities, and 
useful lives of long-lived assets. 

Cm,lz, Cash Equivalents, and Jnvestmentl· 

State statutes require that collateral be pledgc:d at 100 percent of all deposits not covered by Federal 
Deposit 1nsurance Corporation insurance for demand deposits, time deposits, repurchase agreements, and 
certificates of deposit. Obligations of the United States Treasury and its agencies as well as obligations 
of the State and its municipalities and school districts may be pledged. The County has established a 
pooled cash account in which interest earned is allocated to participating funds based on their pro-rata 
shares of the pool. 

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt 
securities are to be reported at fair market values with gains and losses included in the Statement of 
Activities. 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Punds, the County considers all umestricted 
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash 
and cash equivalents include all unrestricted as well as restricted assets with the exception of those held 
by trustees. 

Receivables 

Receivables are recorded at cost net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

lnterfund Tra11sactio11s 

The operations of the County give rise to certain transactions between funds, including transfers of 
expenditures and transfers of revenues to provide services and to construct assets. Interfund activity is 
reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund 
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation in the 
government-wide financial statements. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, 
are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, 
charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other 
interfund transactions are treated as transfers. 
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Capital An·ets/Pmperty, Plallf, and Equipment 

Primary Government - Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more are 
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market 
value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly 
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements 

Infrastructure 

Machinery and Equipment 

20 Years 

45 Years 

15-50Years 

5-15 Years 

Componenl Units - Property, plant, and equipment of the Community College and HCIDA are recorded 
at cost and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Unearned Revenue 

Land Improvements, and Infrastructure 

Buildings and Improvements 

Machinery, Furniture, Equipment, Licensed Vehicles, 

Library Books, and Intangibles 

15-50 Years 

7-50 Years 

3-20 Years 

Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the County before it has a legal claim to them, 
as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent 
periods, when the County has legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenues is removed 
and revenues are recognized. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement ofNet Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Statement of Net 
Position has three items that qualify for repotting in this category. The first itein is related to pensions 
and represents the effect of the net change in the County's, Community College's, and HCIDA's 
propo1tion of the collective net pension asset or liability and the difference during the measurement 
period between the County's, Community College's, or HCIDA's contributions and their proportionate 
share of total contributions not included in pension expense. The second item is a deferred amount on 
refunding of debt reported by the County. A deferred amount on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is defeJTed and amortized 
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The third item is related to other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) reported by the Community College and represents the effect of 
differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions during the year, and 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and will be recognized in 
OPEB expense over the next several years. 
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Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Statement of Net Position has three items that 
qualify for reporting in this category. The first item is related to pensions and repn:sents the effect of the 
net change in the County's, Community College's, or HCIDA's propo11ion of the collective net pension 
asset or liability and the difference during the measurement periods between the County's, Community 
College's, or HCIDA's contributions and its proportionate share of total contributions to the pension 
systems not included in pension expense. The second item is related to other postcmployment benefits 
(OPEB) reported by the Community College and represents the effect of differences between expected 
and actual experience and changes in assumptions during the year. 

The governmental funds also report deferred inflows from two sources, property taxes and other 
unavailable revenues. These items arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. Statute 
provides the authority for the County to levy taxes to be used to finance expenditures within the first 60 
days of the succeeding fiscal year. Consequently, such amounts are recognized as Tcvenue in the 
subsequent fiscal year, rather than when measurable and available. These amounts are deferred and 
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

Vested Employee Benefits-Compensated Absences 

Under the terms of personnel policies and union contracts, County employees, other than elected 
officials, are granted sick, personal, and vacation credits ( compensated absences) and may accumulate 
these credits as follows: 

Sick Leave - Employees are granted sick leave credits of one day per month, and they are allowed to 
accumulate up to 175 days of sick leave credits depending on contract coverage. Sick leave must be used 
prior to leaving County employment. The value of unused sick leave can be conve11ed into retirement 
credits; however, no cash will be issued by the County. 

Personal Leave - Employees are granted up to 3-5 days personal leave each year depending on their 
contracts, coverage, and hiring date. At December 31 of each year, all unused personal leave is 
converted to sick leave. 

Vacation Leave - Employees are granted vacation leave credits of l O to 30 days per year depe11ding on 
their contract and years of service. Employees can carry over 5 or 30 days from year to year, depending 
on terms of the contract. 

It is the County's policy to accrue all costs associated with earned, but not yet paid, compensated 
absences of all employees involved in the operations of the County's reporting entity. 

Community College employees accrue vacation leave in varying amounts and are subject to various 
maximum accruals based on contract group. Community College employees also earn one day of sick 
leave each month subject to a maximum of 175 or 165 days, depending on the contract group. Only 
Community College employees are entitled to receive a benefit for sick leave accumulated upon 
retirement. At August 31, 2020, the Community College accrued $587,453 as a liability for this benefit. 

Retirement Benefits 

The County and HCIDA provide retirement benefits for substantially all of its regular, full-time 
employees through contributions to the New York State Employees' Retirement System. The system 
provides various plans and options, some of which require employee contributions. The retirement 
system computes the cost of retirement benefits based on its fiscal year, April I Lo March 31. 
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The Community College also participates in the Employees' Retirement System, the New York Teachers' 
Retirement System, and the Teachers' Insurance and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities 
Fund. 

In addition to providing pension benefits, the County, Community College, and HCIDA provide post­
employment health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for retired employees and their dependents. 
Collective bargaining agreements determine if employees arc eligible for these benefits. Substantially all 
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working. 
Health care benefits are provided through plans whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during 
the year. The cost of providing postemployment benefits is shared between the County, Community 
College, HCIDA and the retired employee. The County, Community College, and HCiDA recognize the 
costs of providing health insurance by recording its share of inst1rance premiums as an expenditure. 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations 

Payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. In the governmental funds, payables and accrued liabilities are paid in a timely manner and 
in full from current financial resources. Claims and judgments, and compensated absences that will be 
paid from governmental funds, are repo1ted as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the 
extent that they are due for payment in the current year, Bonds and other long-term obligations that will 
be paid from governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements when due. 

Long-tenn obligations represent the County's future obligations or future economic outflows. The 
liabilities are reported as due in one year or due within more than one year in the Statement of Net 
Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond 
issuance costs are expensed when bonds are issued. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are also reported as other financing 
sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
expenditures. 

Revenues 

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes arc billed and collected within 
the same period in which the taxes are levied. Subsidies and grants to propric1a1y funds, which finance 
either capital or current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB. In applying 
GASE to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses, and the recipient recognizes 
receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are 
met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the 
provider and unearned revenue by the recipient. 

Expenditures 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 
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Physicians, hospitals, pharmacists, and others who provide services to public assistance recipients and 
other individuals enrolled in the Medical Assistance Program are entitled to reimbursement of the 
defined cost of such services through the federal, state, and locally funded Medicaid programs. The 
County participates in a state-wide system to process and pay such claims. The County is subsequently 
billed by the system for its share of paid claims. At any point in time, unpaid claims for services rendered 
by providers are either being processed by the system or are still to he repo11ed by the providers. Under 
this Medicaid Cap Legislation, Medicaid liabilities paid subsequent to December 31, 2020 will be paid 
from expendable and available resources of 2021. Thus, no 2020 accrual for Medicaid claims is required. 

Insurance 

The County maintains insurance against liability for most risks, excluding workers' compensation and 
unemployment claims. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been 
impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of Joss can be reasonably estimated and is in 
excess of the County's insured liability limits. 

Public Entity Risk Pool 

The County's Workers' Compensation Fund was created pursuant to Article 5 of Workers' Compensation 
Law and is recognized by the State of New York as a public entity risk pool. The Workers' 
Compensation Fund consists of a cooperative group of county-wide cities, towns, and vii !ages as well as 
the County itself participating in the fund to finance the cost of providing workers' compensation benefits 
for employees of its participating members. The County is considered the predominant participant in this 
fund. 

Other Significant Accounting Policies 

Other significant accounting policies are set forth in the following notes. 

Equity Classificatio11s 

(a) Government-witle Fhtancittl Statements 

ln the Government-wide statements there are three classes of net position: 

Net investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated 
depreciation) reduced by outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, 
construction or improvements of those assets. 

Restricted net position - reports net position when constraints placed on the assets or deferred 
outflow of resources are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt 
covenants), grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position - reports all other net position that do not meet the definition of the 
above two classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the County. 

(b) Fund Statements 

ln the fund basis statements, there are five classifications of fund balance: 

Nonspendable 

This category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they arc either not in spendable form or 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. This category consists of inventories, 
prepaid expenses, and permanent fund principal balances. 
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This category includes amounts with consrrnints placed on the use of resources either externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed 
by Jaw through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Generally, the County's policy is to 
use restricted resources only when appropriated by the Legislators. When an expenditure is incurred 
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the County's policy 
concerning which to apply first varies with the intended u~c, and with associated legal requirements. 

Due to the legal constraints involving the issuance of debt and the accumulation of funds to retire 
that debt, the fund balances of the Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service Fund are classified as 
restricted. In addition, funds restricted by the legislators for special purposes are also classi fled as 
restricted. 

U11restricted Resources 

When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are 
available, the County considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then 
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the County has provided otherwise 
in its commitment or assignment actions. 

• Committed - Includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the County's highest level of decision-making authority, 
i.e., the Legislators. The County has no committed fund balances as of December 31, 2020. 

• Assigned - Includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by (a) the Legislators or 
(b) the designated official, such as the County's Purchasing Agent, to which the Legislators has 
delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. All encumbrances, 
other than in the Capital Fund, are classified as Assigned Fund Balance in the applicable fund. 
The amount appropriated for the subsequent year's budget of !he General Fund is also classified 
as Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund. 

• Unassigned - Includes all other fund net assets that do not meet the definition of the above 
classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the Cmmry. In other 
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts 
restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative 
unassigned fund balance in the respective fund. 

(c) Order of Use of Fwul Balance 

The County's policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance, restricted fund 
balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned fund balance at the end of 
the fiscal year. For all funds, nonspendable fund balances are determined !irst and then restricted 
fund balances for specific purposes are determined. Committed and assigned fund balances are 
determined next, with any remaining fund balance reported as unassigned. Assignments of fund 
balance cannot cause a negative unassigned fund balance. 

Adopted Changes in Accounting Standartls 

GASE Statement No. 84- Fiduciary Activities was implemented effective January 1, 2020. The County 
previously accounted for payroll withholdings and related items in a Trust and Agency Fund. These 
items are now required to be reported in the governmental funds. ln addition, certain deposits, fees, tax 
collections, and other funds are now classified in a Custodial Fund, which replaces the Trust and Agency 
Fund. A statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position are 
required to be presented for these activities. 
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Future Clumges in Accounting Standards 

• GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases Effective for the year ended December 31, 2022 

The County will evaluate the impact this pronouncement may have on its financial statements and will 
implement it as applicable and when material. 

2. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
STATEMENTS AND GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS 

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the governmental fund 
statements and the government-wide statements, certain financial transactions arc treated differently. 
The basic financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items. The differences result 
primarily from the economic focus of the Statement of Activities, compared with the current financial 
resources focus of the governmental funds. 

(a) Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds Compa,·ed to Net Po.1-itio11 of Govemmental 
Activities 

Total fund balances of the County's governmental funds difler from the "net position" of 
governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position. This difference primarily results 
from the additional long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net Position versus the solely 
current financial resources focus of the governmental fund Balance Sheets. 

(b) Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Compared to St11tement of 
Activities 

Differences between the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance and the Statement of Activities fall into one of six broad categories. 

Long-Term Revenue Differences - Long-tenn revenue differences arise because governmental funds 
report revenues only when they are considered "available," whereas the Statement of Activities 
reports revenues when earned. Differences in long-term expenses arise because governmental funds 
report on a modified accrual basis, whereas the accrual basis of accounting is used on the Statement 
of Activities. 

Capital Related Differences - Capital related differences include the difference between proceeds for 
the sale of capital assets reported on governmental fund statements and the gain or Joss on the sale of 
assets as reported on the Statement of Activities, and the difference between recording an 
expenditure for the purchase of capital items in the governmental fund statements and depreciation 
expense on those items as recorded in the Statement of Activities. 

Long-Term Debt Transaction Differences - Long-term debt transaction differences occur because 
both interest and principal payments are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund 
statements, whereas interest payments are recorded in the Statement of Activities as incurred, and 
principal payments are recorded as a reduction of liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. 

Employee Benefit Allocation-Expenditures for employee benefits are not allocated to a specific 
function on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund EqLtity based on the 
requirements of New York State. These costs have been allocated based on total salary for each 
function. 

Pension Dijferences - Pension differences occur as a result of changes in the proportion of the 
collective net pension asset/ liability a1Jd differences between contributions and the propottionate 
share of the total contributions to the pension systems. 

OPEB Differences - OPEB differences occur as a result of changes in the total OPEB liability and 
differences between contributions and expenses. 
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3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

(a) Budgetary Data 

Budget Policies - Budgets are adopted annually on a basis consistent with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Appropriations authorized for the cuffent year 
are increased by the amount of encumbrances caffied forward from the prior year. 

No later than November 15, the budget officer submits a tentative budget to the clerk of the 
Legislature for the fiscal year commencing the following January I. The tentative budget includes 
proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing them. 

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to December 31, the budget is 
legally enacted through the passage of legislative resolution or by provisions in the County Charter. 

All revisions that alter appropriations of any depaiiment or fund must be approved by the 
Legislature. Budgetary controls are established for the Capital Fund through resolutions authorizing 
individual projects which remain in effect for the life of the project. 

Legally Adopted Budgets - All of the funds have legally adopted budgets. The fund's budgets arc 
adopted on a depruimental and object level of expenditure basis in which expenditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations on a departmental and object of expenditure level. 

Individual governmental fund comparisons of budget and actual data at the legal level of control 
established by the adopted budget (i.e., minimally at the department and object level) are not 
presented in this report for those funds with annually adopted budgets due to the excessive detail 
involved. However, a separate budgetary comparison report is available which contains this 
information. 

(b} Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting is used for budget control and monitoring purposes and is reported as a 
part of the governmental funds. Under this method, purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve applicable appropriations. 
Outstanding encumbrances as of year-end are presented as reservations of fund balance and do not 
represent expenditures or liabilities. These commitments will be honored in the subsequent period. 

Related expenditures are recognized at that time, as the liability is incurred or the commitment is 
paid. 

4. CUSTOD IAL AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be 
returned to it. While the County does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York State 
statutes govern the County's investment policie~, as discussed previously in these notes. 

As of December 31, 2020, $37,317,812 of the County's total bank balances of $38,784,272 were exposed 
to custodial credit risk and fully collateralized with collateral held by agents of the County's custodial 
banks in the County's name. 

In addition, $7,282,659 of the Community College and its applicable blended component units bank 
balances of $9,827,930 were exposed to custodial credit risk as detailed below, as of each applicable 
entity's year-end. The Community College also has $7,189,032 in U.S. Treasury bills, which are 
uninsured and uncollateralized, however, they are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States 
Government. 
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Uninsured and Uncollateralized 
Uninsured and Collateral held by the pledging financial 

institution in the Community College's name, or 

Total 

5. PROPERTY TAXES AND COLLECTION 

s 

Primary 
Institution 

4.263,320 

$ 4.2Jil.J.2ll 

Component 
Units 

$ 3,019,339 

$ 3,0 19.339 

County real property taxes are levied annually no later than December 31 and become a lien on 
January 1. Collection of real property taxes starts January 1 and continues until tax sale. Taxes for 
County purposes apportioned to the areas of the County outside the City of Little Falls are levied together 
with taxes for town and special district purposes as a single bill. The towns and special districts receive 
the full amount of their levies annually out of the first amounts collected on the combined bills. The 
County assumes enforcement responsibility for all taxes levied in the towns and special districts, a11d for 
unpaid County taxes in the City of Little Falls. 

The recognition of revenue from real property taxes is considered available to finance current operations 
if collected within 60 days after the end of the year. The net receivables collected during 2020 and within 
the first 60 days of 2020 are recognized as revenues in 2020. Net receivables estimated to be collectible 
subsequent to the first 60 days of2020 are reflected as deferred inflows. 

The County is permitted, in accordance with Section 10 of Article VIII of the New York State 
Constitution, to levy taxes: (a) up to 1.5% of the five-year average fully assessed valuation of taxable 
real property, for general governmental services other than the payment of principal and interest on 
long-term debt, (b) in unlimited amounts for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt, and 
(c) in unlimited amounts for capital appropriations (budgetary appropriations for objects or purpose for 
which a period of probable usefulness is provided by Section 11.00 of local finance law). At 
December 31, 2020 the County utilized approximately 33 .53% of its constitutional tax limit. 

Uncollected school district and village taxes assumed by the County for enforcement through 
December 31, 2020, were $5,031,962 and $1,780,026, respectively. Such amounts will be paid to the 
school districts and villages by April l, 2020 and are included in the amounts due to other governments 
in the accompanying basic financial statements. Any such taxes remaining unpaid at year end are 
relieved as County taxes on December 31. 

Taxes receivable at December 31, 2020 are recorded net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible 
accounts of $1,517,000. 

6. SALES TAX 

Effective September I, 1992, the County imposed a 4% sales tax. The sharing formula for the first 3% of 
the sales tax is distributed between the County, Towns and Villages. The additional 1 % is kept by the 
County. At December I, 2007, the County imposed an additional .25% of the sales tax that is kept by the 
County and is placed in a reserve for the new County Jail. Etfoctive October I , 2018, the additional .25 % 
is being transferred from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to assist with payments on the 
County Jail debt. 

Sales tax revenues are recorded on an accrual basis to the extent that such accrued amounts were received 
by New York State (the intermediary government) from vendors through December 31. The County also 
accrues its portion of such revenue attributable to the current year but remitted to the State (and 
ultimately the County) in the subsequent year. 
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7. TUITION AND FEES RECEIVABLES 

Student tuition and fees receivable are presented on the Statement of Net Position, net of an allowance 
for uncollectible accounts of $412,304. 

8. RESTRICTED ASSETS HELD BY TRUSTEE 

Herkimer Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation 

Deposits with trustees represent a liquidity reserve that has been established pursuant to HTASC's 
indenture. The reserve is required to be funded in an amount equal to the maximum annual debt service 
on the Series 2005 Bonds. Amounts exceeding the reserve requirements will be transferred to the debt 
service account and will be available to make flexible amo11ization payments. 

Deposits with trustees of $I, 14 I ,449 at December 31, 2020, are comprised of investments in money 
market funds and invested cash, which are considered cash and cash equivalents. 

9. INVESTMENTS 

Investments at August 31, 2020, for the discretely presented component units arc as follows: 

Markel Cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,807 $ 5,807 

U.S. Government Obligations 876,818 795,922 

Corporate Notes 1,332,593 1,319,877 

Corporate Equities 3,159,274 2,310,975 

Mutual Funds 543 669 496 850 

Total $ 5,218,161 $_.A-,222,43 I 

The following summarizes net appreciation on investments for the year ended August 31, 2020: 

Market Cost Net Change 

Unrealized Gain 
End ofYear $ 5,9 I 8, I 61 $ 4,929,431 $ 988,730 

Beginning of Year 5,061,229 4,597,365 463.864 

Total Unrealized Gain 524,866 

Realized Gain 251,323 

Interest and Dividends 150,557 

Investment Fees (47,928) 

Net Investment Gain $ 828 818 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board authoritative guidance on fair value measurements 
establishes a fi-amework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets {Level I measurements) and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The component unit only has investments 
in the first two levels. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 

Level I: Inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and generally 
have the most reliable evidence of fair value. 

Level 2: Inputs consist of observable inputs other than quoted prices for the identical assets. 

Level 3: Inputs consist of unobservable inputs and should be used only when Level 1 and Level 2 
inputs are unavailable. 
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The component unit measures fair value using the highest-level inputs available because they generally 
provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. 

Level 1 - Fair Value Measurement 

The fair value of Mutual Funds are based on quoted net asset values of the shares held by the Mutual 
Fund at year-end. The fair value of Common Stocks, certain U.S. Government Securities, Corporate Debt 
Obligations, and Money Market Funds are based on quoted prices of identical assets. 

Level 2 - Fair Value Measurement 

The fair value of certain pooled U.S. Government Securities (FNMA Pools and FHLMC Pools) are based 
on market values determined by outside sources. While the underlying asset values are quoted prices, the 
Net Asset Value of the pool is not publicly quoted. 

The component unit's investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statement of financial 
position and are summarized below as of August 31, 2020: 

Fair Value Measurements 
Using 

Investments Total Level 1 Leve12 Leve!3 

Short-Term lnvestments $ 1,790,4 15 $ 1,544,905 $ 245,510 $ 0 

Long-Term 1nvestments 4. 127.746 3 604 778 522.968 0 

Total $-2.218.....L6] $_2 142,683 $ 768 :lZli $ _ _Q 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity of the Governmental Activities for the year ended December 31, 2020, is as 

follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Capital Assets Not Reing Depreciated 
Land $ 70,800 $ $ $ 70,800 
Construction in Progress 22.373 403 12. 156.394 657.298 40 HZ2 499 

29 444 203 12. 156.394 657.298 40.943.299 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 
Buildings and Improvements 17,041,107 130,518 17,171,625 
Infrastructure !34,693,838 3,014,071 137,707,909 
Machinery, Vehicles, Equipment 

and Other Items 17 171.286 3 870 706 21,041.992 
168 906 23 J 7.015.295 175 921.526 

Accumulated Depreci,1tion 
Buildings and lmprovements 8,484,658 480,308 8,964,966 
Jnfrnstructu re 71,304,658 3,618,690 74,923,348 
Machine!)', Vehicles, Equipment 

and Other Jtcms 10 520.949 2.092.328 12 613.277 
90.310.265 6.191 ,J2Q 96.50 1 591 

Net Capital Assets $ 108 04() 169 $ l.2...2l!illfil $ 651,228 $_-1.lQ.1(\.l 214. 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General Government Support 
Public Safety 
Public Health 
Transportation 
Economic Assistance and Oppo1tunity 

Total Governmental Activities Expense 

$ 

$ 

811,064 
247,653 

24,765 
5,076,887 

30.957 
6,191326 

Capital asset activity of the Business-Type Activities for the year ended December 3 l, 2020, is as 

follows: 

Beginnlng Ending 
Balance lncrcaS(.'S Balance 

Capital Assets Not B~ing Depreciated 
Land $ 3.100 $ $ J, IOQ 

Capital Asse1s Reing Depreciated 
Buildings and Improvements 5,967,176 5,967) 76 

lnfrnstructur~ 5,849,638 5,849,638 

Machinery and Equipment 5 477 518 85.821 5.563.339 
17.294.332 85.821 17 380.153 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Buildings and Improvements 5,031,350 141,541 5,172,89 J 

Infrastructure 5,007,205 62,86] 5,070,066 

Machineiy and Equipment 2.910.3] 4 320.327 3 23°-641 
12.948 869 524 729 JJ.4n s9& 

Net Capital Assets S~ 4&.i6J $ (43R 20Sl $__1~ 

A summary of the book value of property, plant, and equipment of the discretely presented component 
units, is as follows: 

Capital A~sets Not Being Depreciated 
Buildings and Improvements 
Land Improvements, and Infrastructure 
Machinery, Equipment, Vehicles, Library Book~, and Intangibles 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Capital Assets 

1 l. NON CURRENT LIABILITfES 

Noncurrent liability balances and activity are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Bonds 
Serial Bond Premium 
Accrued I ntercst 
Compensated Absences 

$ 

Net Pension Liabi lily Prnportio11ate Share 
Other Postempluyrncnt Benefits 
Accrued Workers' Compensation 

Beginning 
8alance 

44,347,855 $ 
139,608 
125,005 
677,792 

4,669,647 
123,334,743 

3 200 000 
177 I 94,ru! $ Total Governmental Activities $,=~~= 
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Increases 

744,447 

24,870 
46,430 

12,317,158 
19,647,230 

32 78().135 

Community 
Co]lcoc 

$ 299,511 
48,128,659 

5,678,720 
14.331.760 
68,438,650 
44.610.147 

$ 2 3 82.il..iU3. 

F.nding 
Decreases l3ahmcc 

$ 1,830,000 $ 43,262,302 
10,739 128,869 
7,186 142,689 

724,222 
16,986,805 

2,772,016 140,209,957 
3 900 000 

$ _ 4,61.2.211 $ 205.35~ 

$ 

$ 

J-JC!DA 
1,652,980 
3,188,952 

0 
0 

4,841,932 
l.34 \.858 

3~5lliWl9 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 1,905,000 
10,739 

142.689 

s ___ 2.0,s 4.1.8 
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Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Business-Type Activities 
13onds $ 2,795,000 $ $ 275,000 
Accrned Interest 8,408 1,148 
Compensated Absences 20,070 l,477 
Net Pension Liability Proponionate Share I 09,588 253,105 
Other Poslemployrncnt Benefits 2,807,847 419,497 59,187 
Accrued Workers' Compensation 7.662.458 

Total 13usines~-Type Activities $ 13 4Q3,lll $ --------612.fil)l $ 336 SP 

Beginning 

Emling Due Within 
Balance One Yrnr 

$ 2,520,000 $ 290,000 
7,260 7,260 

lX,593 
362,693 

J,168.157 
7.662.458 

$ LJ.1J9 1.61 $ 297,260 

Ending Due Within 
Balanc~ Increases Decreases Balance One Year 

Component Units 
llo11ds and Notes Payable $ 6,596,304 $ 106,200 $ 915,802 $ 5,786,702 $ 775,023 
Capital Lease Obi igation 210,184 72,138 13X,046 73,131 
Compensated Absences 533,998 53,455 587,453 357,118 
Net Pension r .iability (Proportionate Share) 850,439 2,628,052 J,478,491 
Other Postemploymcnt Benefits 42.943.608 7.070 336 50 013.944 

Total Component Units $ ------2.Ll.J.4 ,S.11 $ 2 858 Q43 $~ _7,'2.40 $..,6_\1.P.Qli.16 $ 1.205,212 

Additions and deletions to compensated absences are shown net since it is impracticable to determine 
these amounts separately. 

Accrued Interest - represents interest accrued yet unpaid at December 3 J, 2020, which is included in the 
Government-Wide statements and Enterprise Sewer Fund Statement of Net Position. 

Serial Bonds and Other Debt 

The County borrows funds on a long-term basis for the purpose of financing acquisitions of land and 
equipment and construction of buildings and improvements. This policy enables the cost of these capital 
assets to be borne by the present and future taxpayers receiving the benefit of the capital assets. These 
long-term liabilities for governmental funds are maintained separately and represent a reconciling item 
between the fund and government-wide statements except for those amounts which relate lo and are, 
therefore, accounted for in the proprietary fund types and discretely presented component units. Interest 
associated with long-term debt is recorded as an expenditure when such amounts arc due. Interest 
expense for governmental funds and business type activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was 
$1,431,090 and $87,589, respectively. Business type activities interest expense was directly related to the 
Sewer Fund and has been included as a direct function expense. 

Details relating to general obligation (serial) bonds and other debt of the County outstanding at 
December 31, 2020, are summarized as follows: 

Description of Issue 
Governmental Activities 

HTASC Tobacco Settlement Bonds 
2013 Refunding Bonds - County 
2018 Public Safety Bldg. Serial Bond 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities 
VFD Sewer 
2015 Sewer Belt Press 
2013 Refunding Bond -

Sewer Improvements 
Total Business-Type Activities 

Final 
Maturity 

2040 
2024 
2032 

2029 
2030 

2021 

39 

Interest 
Rate 

4.25-7.85 
0.35-2.13 
2.00-4.00 

2.00-4.375 
1.00-3.00 

0.35-2.125 

Balance 

$ 25,242,302 
1,720,000 

16,300,000 
43,262,302 

l, 110,000 
1,345,000 

65 000 
2.520,000 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Final Interest 
Description oflssue Maturitv Rate Balance 

Component Units 
Community College 

Mortgage Note 2024 4.60 1,959,749 

Mortgage Note 2025 4.55 1,534,858 
Payroll Protection Program Loan 2022 1.00 106,200 

HCIDA 
Notes Payable 2028 1.00 :2. l 85.895 

Total Component Units 5,786.702 

Total Reporting Entity $ 5 1,697,ffi 

Principal and interest payments due on serial bonds and loans outstanding at December 31, 2020, are as 
follows: 

Governmental Funds Business T:tpe Com12onent Units 
Principal h1terest Principal Interest Principal JnteresL 

2021 1,905,000 1,301,450 290,000 81,187 775,023 148,252 
2022 2,020,000 1,245,450 235,000 73,237 834,412 114,506 
2023 2,065,000 1,185,725 240,000 66,337 804,404 77,603 
2024 2,100,000 1,125,125 250,000 58,675 839,598 40,459 
2025 1,795,000 1,059,900 250,000 50,581 444,401 7,908 
2026-2030 14,987,732 8,261,549 1,255,000 113,734 2,088,864 I, l 17 
2031-2035 7,397,285 8,667,856 
2036-2040 l0.992,285 7,270,701 
Total $~ .2/u~Jfil $ 30. 117,7.5.6. $ 2 520 000 $ 443 751 $__i 786,704 $ 389,845 

Unamortized Premium 

The original issue premium on the 2018 serial bond has been deferred and recorded as an addition to 
long-term liabilities on the Government-wide financial statements. The premium is being amortized 
using the straight-line method over 14 years, the remaining time to maturity of the respective bond issue. 
The current year amortization is $10,739 and is included as a reduction to interest expense on the 
Statement of Activities. 

Advance Refunding 

ln a prior year, the County defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new 
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. 
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the 
County's financial statements. On December 31, 2020, $2,105,000 of bonds outstanding are considered 
defeased. 

The refunding resulted in a deferred cost of $307,000 due to the reacquisition price exceeding the 
carrying value of the refunded bonds. This amount was classified as a deferred outflow of resources on 
the Government-wide financial statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
(GASB Statement) No. 63 and GASB Statement No. 65. The deferred cost is being amortized as interest 
expense over the life of the refunding bonds. Interest expensed amortized in 2020 was $26,667, and the 
balance remaining at December 31, 2020 is $94,445. 
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Joint Guarantor of Debt 

The County is a joint guarantor with Oneida County on revenue bonds issued by the Oneida-Herkimer 
Solid Waste Management Authority (The Authority), a legally separate entity that is a component unit of 
Oneida County. The bonds mature annually through 2026, with semiannual interest payments. At 
December 31, 2020, the Authority had $17,592,593 in outstanding bonds. 

12. CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE 

The Community College maintains various capital leases for the rental of several copy machines for 
approximately $6,230 monthly, including interest of approximately .402% to 1.651 % nominal annual 

rate through November 20, 2023. 

The following is an analysis of the leased assets included as capital assets on the Community College's 

books at August 31, 2020: 

Equipment 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Propetfy 

Amount 
$ 389,380 

278 024 
$ 111,356 

Amortization of assets held under capital leases by the Community College is included in depreciation 

expense. 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the 
net present value of the minimum lease payments as of August 31, 2020: 

Year Ending Minimum 
August 3 I, Payments Due 
2021 74,760 
2022 45,452 
2023 16,145 
2024 4,036 
Minimum Lease Payments- Capital Leases 140,393 
Less: Amount Representing Interest 2 3 4 7 
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ __ _JJ8.046 

13. RETIREMENT PLANS 

The County participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System (ERS) and the 
New York State Teachers' Retirement System (TRS). These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
public employee retirement systems. Both systems offer a wide range of plans and benefits, which are 
related to years of services and final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, and death and 
disability. The employees of the Community College are also offered the optional Teachers' Insurance 
and Annuity College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF) retirement plan. 

Obligations of employers and employees to contribute, and related benefits, are governed by the New 
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL) and Education Law. These plans offer a 
wide range of programs and benefits. ERS and TRS benefits are related to years of credited service and 
final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death and disability benefits, and optional methods of 
benefit payments. TIAA-CREF is a State University Optional Retirement Program (ORP) and offers 
benefits through annuity contracts. 

41 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

A. Teachers' Insurance and Annuity College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF) 

TIAA/CREF is a defined contribution retirement plan which provides benefits through annuity 
contracts and provides retirement and death benefits to those employees that elected to participate 
in the optional retirement program. Benefits are determined by the amount of individual 
accumulations and the retirement income option selected. All benefits generally vest after the 
completion of one year of service. TIAA/CREF is noncontributory except for employees who 
joined after July 27, 1976, who contribute 3% of their salary in tiers 3, 4, and 5. Tier 6 participants 
are required to make employee contributions based on their estimated gross annual wages with 
percentages ranging from 3% to 6%. Employer contributions range from 8% to 15% depending 
upon when the employee was hired. Employee contributions are deducted from their salaries and 
are remitted on a current basis to TIAA/CREF. The Community College's pension contributions to 
TIAA/CREF for fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018 were $553,279, $597,653, and $659,186, 
respectively. Financial reports of the plan may be obtained by writing to: TJAA/CREF, 730 Third 
Avenue, New York, New York 10017. 

B. New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System (ERS) 

(a) Plan Description 

The County, the Community College, and the HCIDA pa1ticipate in the New York State and 
Local Employees' Retirement System (ERS). This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, 
defined benefit, public employee retirement system. The system provides retirement benefits 
as well as death and disability benefits. 

The net position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (the 
Fund), which was established to hold all net assets and record changes in plan net position 
allocated to the System. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the 
Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The Comptroller is an elected official 
determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four-year term. Thomas P. DiNapoli has 
served as Comptroller since Febmary 7, 2007. In November, 2018, he was elected for a new 
term commencing January 1, 2019. System benefits are established under the provisions of the 
New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to 
participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution 
provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be 
diminished or impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a 
State statute. The Community College also participates in the Public Employees' Group Life 
Insurance Plan (GUP), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System 
maintains records and accounts, and prepares financial statements using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Contributions are recognized when due. Benefit payments are recognized when 
due and payable. Investments are recognized at fair value. The System is included in the State's 
financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to 
benefits provided, may be found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or 
obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, 
Albany, NY 12244. 
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The System is noncontributory for employees who joined prior to July 27, 1976. For 
employees who joined on or after July 27, 1976, and prior to January 1, 2010, employees 
contribute 3% of their salary for the frrst ten years of membership. Employees who joined on 
or after Janua1y 1, 2010 and prior to April 1, 20 I 2 a1e required to contribute 3% of their annual 
salary for their entire working career. Employees who joined on or after April 1, 2012 must 
contribute a specific percentage of earnings (3-6 %) for their entire career. Under the authority 
of the RSSL, the Comptroller certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in 
computing the employers' contributions based on salaries paid during the Systems' fiscal year 
ending March 31. All required contributions for the NYSERS fiscal year ended March 31, 
2020, were paid. 

The required contributions for the current year and two preceding years were: 

Community 

County College HCIDA 

2018 $ 2,522,220 $ 453,801 $ 16,671 

2019 $ 2,457,357 $ 451,445 $ 23,445 

2020 $ 2,463,891 $ 427,583 $ 27,193 

(c) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

County 

At December 31, 2020, the County reported a liability of $17,349,498 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 
2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by 
an actuarial valuation. The County's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the County's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. 

At December 31, 2020, the County's proportion was 0.065518%, which was a decrease of 
.0001935% as compared to the County's proportion as of December 31, 2019. 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the County recognized pension expense of $5,706,347. 
At December 31, 2020, the County repo1ted deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Int1ows 

of Resources of Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1.021.088 $ 

Change of assumption~ 349.336 301 ,646 

Net Diffen:nce Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pensions Plan Investments 8.894.196 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contributions 

and Proportionate Share of Contributions 20.731 353,106 

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 2.464.539 

Total $ 12,749,890 $ 654.752 
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At December 31, 2020, $2,464,539 was reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to 
pensions resulting from County contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset/liability in the year ended December 31, 
2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

For the year ending December 31: 

Compo11e11t V11it.\' 

202.l 

2022 

2023 

2024 

$ 1,542,019 

$ 2,408,815 

$ 3,136,088 

$ 2,543,679 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College repo1ied a liability of $3,124,302 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. At December 31, 2020, the HCIDA reported a 
liability of $1 I 4,275 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension 
liability was measured as of March 31, 2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation. The Component Units' 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Component Units' long­
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating members, actuarially determined. 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College's propo1tion was 0.0 I 180%, which is an increase 
of .00009% as compared to the Community College's proportion at August 31, 2019. 

At December 31, 2020, the HCTDA's proportion was .00043%, which is an increase of 
.00014% as compared to the HCIDA's proportion at December 31, 2019. 

For the year ended August 31, 2020, the Community College recognized pension expense of 
$1,039,203. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the HClDA recognized pension expense 
of$20,465. 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows 
ofresources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Defe1red Outflows Deferred Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Di ITerences Betv,ccn Expected and Actual Experience $ 183,878 $ 

Change of assmnptions 62.909 54.321 

Net Difference 13elween Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pensions Plan Investments 1,601,669 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contributions 

and Proportionate Share of Contributions 3.733 63.587 

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 184.858 

Tot~! $ 2,037,047 $ l 17.908 

At August 31, 2020, $184,858 was reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to 
pensions resulting from Community College contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset/liability in the year ended August 
31, 2021. 
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Other amounts reported as defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

For the year ending August 31: 

2021 $ 277,687 

2022 $ 433,780 

2023 $ 564,747 

2024 $ 458,066 

At December 31, 2020, the HCIDA reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Dclcrrcd Outflows Oel'erml lnllows 

of Resources of Resources 

Difterenccs Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 6.726 $ 

Change of assumptions 2.301 1.987 

Net Difference Belween Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pensions Plan lnvestments 58.583 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contrihulions 

and Proportionate Share of Contributions 8,986 692 

Contributions Subsequent lo the Measurement Date 20.395 

Total $ 96,991 $ 2,679 

At December 31, 2020, $20,395 was reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to 
pensions resulting from HCIDA contributions subseque11t to the measurement date and will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset/liability in the year ended December 31, 
2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

For the year ending December 31: 

(ti) Actuarial Assumptfons 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

13,803 

18,104 

23,061 

18,949 

The total pension liability as of the measurement date of March 31, 2020 was determined by 
usi11g an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2019 with update procedure~ used to roll forward the 
total pension liability to March 31, 2020. 
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Significant actuarial assumptions used in the April I, 2019 valuation were as follows: 

lnvestment Rate of Return 

(Net of Investment Expense, 

Including Inflation) 

Salary Scale 

Decrements 

lntlation Rate 

Cost of Living adjustments 

6.80% 

4.20% 

Based on FY 2011-2015 

System's Experience Study 

2.50% 

1.30% 

Annuitant mortality rates are based on April I, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System experience with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2018. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2019 valuation are based on the resu Its of an 
actuaria I experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 20 l S. 
The long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
( expected returns net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and hy adding 
expected inflation. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates ofreturn for each major asset class included in the target 
asset allocation as of March 31, 2020 are summarized below: 

Long-Term 

Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Domestic EqL1ity 36% 4.05% 

International Equity 14% 6.15% 

Private Equity 10% 6.75% 

Real Estate 10% 4.95% 

Absolute RetL1rn Strategies 2% 3.25% 

Opportunistic Portfolio 3% 4.65% 

Real Assets 3% 5.95% 

Bonds and Mortgages 17% 0.75% 

Cash 1% 0.00% 

Inflation-Indexed Bonds 4% 0.50% 

100% 

The real rate of return is net of the long-term infl.ation assumption of 2.5% 
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 6.8%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the System's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

(I) Sensitivity of tile Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Ille Discount Rate 
Assumption 

The following presents the County's, Community College's, and HCJDA 's propo1tionate share 
of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6. 8 percent, as well as what the 
their propo1tionate share of the net pension (asset) liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (5 .8 percent) or one percentage-point higher 
(7 .8 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 

Decrease Assumptio11 Increase 

(5.8%) (6.8%} (7.8%) 

Proportionate Share of 

County the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 31,841,228 $17,349,498 $ 4,002,554 

Community Proportionate Share of 

College the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 5,733,976 $ 3,124,302 $ 720,781 

HCIDA Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 209,727 $ l 14,275 $ 26,363 

(g) Pension Plan Fitluciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
ERS financial repmt. 

(II) Payables to the Pension Plan 

Com1111111it11 College 

The Community College has recorded an amount due to ERS in amount of $184,858 at August 
31, 2020. This amount represents the five months of the Community College's fiscal year that 
will be covered in the ERS 2020-2021 billing cycle and has been accrued as an expenditure in 
the current year. 

C. New York State Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) 

(a) Plan Description 

The Community College participates in the New York Teachers' Retirement System (TRS). 
This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The system 
provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. 
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The TRS was created and exists pursuant to Article 11 of the New York State Education Law. 
TRS is administered by the system and governed by a ten-member board to provide these 
benefits to teachers employed by participating employers in the State of New York, excluding 
New York City. The System provides benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized 
by the New York State Law and may be amended only by the Legislature with the Governor's 
approval. Benefit provisions vary depending on date of membership and membership class (6 
tiers). The System's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Contributions are recognized when due. Benefit payments are recognized when due and 
payable. Investments are recognized at fair value. TRS issues a publicly available financial 
report that contains basic financial statements and required supplementary information for the 
System. For additional plan infonnation please refer to the NYSTRS Comprehensive Annual 
f-inancial Repoti which can be found on the TRS website located at www.nystrs.org or 
obtained by writing to the New York State Teachers' Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods 
Drive, Albany, NY 12211-2395. 

(b} Contributions 

Pursuant to Article 11 of the New York State Education Law, employers are required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate adopted annually by the Retirement Board. Tier 3 
and Tier 4 members who have less than 10 years of service or membership are required by law 
to contribute 3% of salary to the System. Tier 5 members are required by law to contribute 
3.5% of salary throughout their active membership. Tier 6 members are required by law to 
contribute between 3% and 6% of salary throughout their active membership in accordance 
with a schedule based upon salary earned. Pursuant to Article 14 and Article 15 of the 
Retirement and Social Security Law, those member contributions are used to help fund the 
benefits provided by the System. However, if a member dies or leaves covered employment 
with less than 5 years of credited service for Tiers 3 and 4, or 10 years of credited service for 
Tiers 5 and 6, the member contributions with interest calculated at 5% per annum are refunded 
to the employee or designated beneficiary. Eligible Tier I and Tier 2 members may make 
member contributions under certain conditions pursuant to the provisions of Article 11 of the 
Education Law and Article 11 of the Retirement and Social Security Law. Upon termination of 
membership, such accumulated member contributions are refunded. At retirement, such 
accumulated member contributions can be withdrawn or are paid as a life annuity. 

The required employer contributions for the current year and two preceding years were: 

2018 

2019 

2020 

Amount 

$ 181,267 

$ 180,679 

$ 130,566 

(c) Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Re~·ources Related to Pensions 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College reported a liability of $239,914 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2020. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation. The Community College's proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the Community College's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
members, actuarially determined. 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College's proportion was 0.00868%, which was a 
decrease of . 00 151 % from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2019. 
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For the year ended August 31, 2020, the Community College recognized pension expense of 
$372,447. 

At August 31, 2020, the Community College repo1ted deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pensions Plan lnvesbnents 

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contributions 

and Proportionate Share of Contributions 

Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 

$ 

$ 

210,213 

303,436 

156,685 

212,J 86 

23 864 

906,384 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 

$ 

12,295 

108,1 59 

120.454 

At August 31, 2020, $23,864 was reported as a deferred outflow of resources related to 
pensions resulting from Community College contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension asset/liability in the year ended August 
31, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defe1red inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

For the year ending August 31: 

(ti) Actuarial Assumptions 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Thereafter 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

142,811 

238,01 S 

200,524 

126,283 

28,579 

25,854 

The plans total pension liability at the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined hy 
using an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, with update procedures used to roll forward 
the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. 
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Significant acruarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were as follows: 

Investment Rate of Return 

Salary Scale 

Projected COLAs 

Inflation Rate 

7.10% Compounded Annually, Net of Pension Plan 

Investment Expense, Including Inflation. 

Rates oflncrease Differ Based on Service. 

They Have Been Calculated Based Upon Recent 

NYSTRS Member Experience. 

Service Rate 

5 4.72% 

15 3.46% 

25 2.37% 

35 1.90% 

1.3% Compounded Annually. 

2.2% 

Annuitant mortality rates are based on plan member experience, with adjustments for mortality 
improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP2019, applied on a generational basis. 
Active member mortality rates are based on plan member experience. 

The actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 
period July I, 2009 to June 30, 2014. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined in 
accordance with Actuarial Standard of Practice (ASOP) No. 27, Selection of Economic 
Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations. ASOP No. 27 provides guidance on the 
selection of an appropriate assumed investment rate of return. Consideration was given to 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) for each major asset class as well as historical investment data and plan 
performance. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
System's target asset allocation as of the measurement date of June 30, 2020 are summarized 
in the following table: 

Target Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return* 

Domestic Equity 33.0% 7.1% 

lntero~lional Equity 16.0% 7.7% 

Global Equity 4.0% 7.4% 

Real Estate Equity 11.0% 6.8% 

Private Equity 8.0% 10.4% 

Domestic Fixed lm;ome 16.0% 1.8% 

Ulobal 13on<ls 2.0% 1.0% 

Private Debt LO% 5.2% 

High-yield Fixed Income 1.0% 3.9% 

Real Estate Debt 7.0% 3.6% 

Cash Equivalents 1.0% 0.7% 

100.0% 

* Real rates of return are net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.2% for 2020. 
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(e) Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .10%. The projection of cash 
t1ows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from Colleges will be 
made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the 
System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected fi.tture 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

(f) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of tire Net Pension Liability to tl,e Discou11t Rllfe 

Assumption 

(g) 

The following presents Community College's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the Community College's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or one percentage-point higher 
(8.10 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 

Decrease Assumption increase 

(6.1 0%) (7. 10%) (8. 10%) 

Proportionate Share of 

the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $1,515,457 $ 239,914 $ (830,589) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
TRS financial report. 

(h) P"yahles to t!te Pension Plan 

The Community College has recorded an amount due to TRS in amount of23,864 (excluding 
employees' share) in the General Fund at August 31, 2020. This amount represents the 
contribution for the 2019-2020 fiscal year that will be made in 2020-2021 and has been 
accrued as an expenditure in the current year. 

14. POSTRETIREMENT HEAL TH CARE BENEFITS 

The County 

(a) Plan Description 

The County offers medical coverage to retirees on a self-funded basis through Excellus Blue Cross 
Blue Shield as a single-employer defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit plan (The Plan). 
The Plan provides for continuation of medical insurance benefits for certain retirees and their 
spouses and can be amended by action of the County subject to applicable collective bargaining and 
employment agreements. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets all of the criteria in GASB 
Statement No. 75, paragraph 4. 

The Plan does not issue a standalone publicly available financial report since there are no assets 
legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the Plan. 
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(b) Benefits Provided 

The County Plan provides medical coverage, including prescription drugs, to retirees and their 
dependents. 

(c) Contributions 

(d) 

Eligibility for retirement is based on meeting a criteria of minimum age and/or years of service 
requirement with variations based on bargaining unit and date of hire. Below is a summary of 
retirement eligibility requirements by bargaining unit and their respective contribution rates: 

Years Employee Dependent 
Bargaining Unit Hire Date Age of Service Share Share 
CSEA Before 9/1/1983 55 10 0% 0% 
CSEA On/After 9/1/1983 55 25 50% 65% 
Sheriff Before 9/1/1987 55 10 0% 0% 
Sheriff On/After 9/1/1987 55 25 50% 65% 
Highway Before I /1/94 55 10 0% 0% 
Highway 1 /1/94 to 1/31/2000 55 10 25% 25% 
Highway On/After 2/1/2000 55 25 50% 65% 
Exempt Before 4/1/2009 55 10 0% 0% 
Exempt On/After 4/1/2009 62 15 10% 10% 

The employer currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-
as-you go basis. 

Covered Employees 

Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 
Total 

Total 
225 
0 

383 
608 

(e) Total OPEB Liahility 

The County's total OPEB liability of $143,378,114 was measured as of December 31, 2020, and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020. Financial data and actuarial roll forward 
techniques were used to calculate the results as of December 31, 2020, the measurement date. 

(t) Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Th~ following table summarizes the changes in the County's total OPEB liability: 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

Changes recognized for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest on total OPEB liability 
Change in assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 

Net Changes 

Balance at December 3 J, 2020 

52 

$ I ?6.J 4? .590 

2,956,759 
2,519,485 

14,590,483 
(2.831.203) 
17.235,524 
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Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflects a change in the discount rate from 2.9% in 2019 to 
2.02% in 2020 offset by reductions in starting claims cost and trend (i.e. favorable premium rate 
increases since prior valuation). 

(g) Sensitivity of the total OPEB liabili1y to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
( 1.02 percent) or I percentage point higher (3 .02 percent) than the current discount rate: 

Total OPES liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(1.02%) 

$ 179,988,072 

Current 
Assumption 

(?.02%) 

$143,378,114 

1% 
Increase 
(3.02%) 

$ 116,654,369 

(h) Sensitivity of the Iota{ OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage 
point lower (6.0 percent decreasing to 3.5 percent) or I percentage point higher (8.0 percent 
decreasing to 5 .5 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

1% 
Decrease 

(6.0%-3.5%) 

Current 
Assumption 
(7.0%-4.5%) 

1% 
Increase 

(8.0%-5.5%) 

Total OPEB liability $115,032,012 $143,378,114 $ 182,545,653 

(i) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows oj"Resources Refuted to 
OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the County recognized OPEB expense of $10,262,746. 

At December 31, 2020, the County reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 3?.]06 209 

Amounts repmted as deferred outt1ows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Year Ending December 31 : 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Thereafter 
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$ 3,872,808 
$ 3,872,808 
$ 3,872,808 
$ 3,872,808 
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U) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement, unless otherwise 
speci [ied: 

IIealthcare Cost Trend Rates 

Salary Increases 
Value of Assets 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Discount Rate 

7.0 percent for 2022, decreasing 0.25 percent per year 
to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2032 and later years 
3 .0% average 
NIA 
Entry Age Normal as a Level Percentage of Payroll 
2.02% (2.9% for prior valuation) 

The mortality table used for the current valuation was the Society of Actuaries Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Healthy Male and Female Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Mortality tables 
based on Employee and Healthy Annuitant Tables for both pre and post-retirement projected with 
mortality improvements using the most current Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale 
MP-2019. 

The selected discount rate is based on the prescribed discount interest rate methodology under 
GASB No. 75 using an average of three 20-year bond indices (e.g., Bond Buyer-20 Bond GO -
2.12%, S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index - 1.93%, and Fidelity GA AA 20 
Years - 2.00 %) as of December 31, 2020. 

The Community College 

{a) Plan Description: The Community College provides three self-insured and one community rated 
MVP medical plan option to Non-Medicare eligible retirees and dependents which provide 
postemployment health insurance coverage to its retired employees meeting certain requirements. 
Substantially all full-time employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal 
retirement age while working for the Community College. Benefit provisions are established and 
may be amended by the Community College's Board of Trustees. The Plan does not issue a stand­
alone publicly available repo1t since no assets are accumulated in a trust that meets all of the criteria 
in GASB No. 75, paragraph 4. 

(b) Benefits Provided 

The Community College provides medical and prescription drug benefits for retirees, spouses, and 
their covered dependents while contributing a portion of the expenses. 

(c) Eligibility and Funding Policy: The Community College pays the following percentages of health 
insurance premiums for the various employee groups: 

Professional Association 

• Members hired on or before January 1, 1995 who have continued with unbroken employment 
with the Community College for 10 years or more and who are at least 55 years of age are 
eligible. Type of coverage (individual, two-person, or family) will be determined by the 
coverage that the employee had at the time of retirement. Retirees shall make the same 
percentage contribution toward health insurance as when last employed by the Community 
College. As of August 31, 2020, these members contribute 10% of the individual premium and 
an additional 10% of the additional premium cost for spousal coverage. 
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• Members hired between January 1, I 995 and August 31, 2000 must have at least 15 years of 
service and he at least age 60 to be eligible for retiree health insurance coverage. Type of 
coverage (individual, two-person, or family) will be determined by the coverage that the 
employee had at the time of retirement. Retirees shall make the same percentage contribution 
toward health insurance as when last employed by the Community College. As of August 31, 
2020, these members contribute 18% of the individual premium and an additional 18% of the 
additional premium cost for spousal coverage. 

• Members hired on or after September 1, 2000 must have at least 15 years of service and be at 
least 60 to be eligible for retiree health insurance coverage. Retirees are entitled to individual 
health insurance benefits at the time of retirement. Retirees shall make the same percentage 
contribution toward health insurance as when last employed by the Community College. 
Should an employee opt for a two-person or family plan (if eligible) at the time of retirement, 
they would be responsible for I 00% of the difference in premiums between the individual and 
two-person or family plan. As of August 31, 2020, these members contribute 18% of the 
individual premium and an additional I 00% of the additional premium cost for spousal 
coverage. 

Civil Service 

• Members hired prior to Ai1gust 31, 1983, who have continuous, unbroken employment with the 
Community College for 10 years or more and who are at least 55 years of age are eligible for 
health insurance coverage. These retiree health insurance premiums are covered I 00% by the 
Community College. 

• Members hired after August 31, 1983 must have at least 25 years of service and be at least age 5 5 
to be eligible for retiree health insurance coverage. These retirees are responsible for 50% of the 
individual premium and an additional 35% of the additional premium cost for spousal coverage. 

Exempt Emplovees 

• Exempt employees hired prior to January l, 1995 must have at least 10 years of service and be at 
least age 55 to be eligible. The type of coverage (individual, two-person, or family) will be 
determined by the coverage that the employee had at the time ofretirement. Retirees shall make 
the same percentage contribution as when last employed by the Community College. As of 
August 31, 2020, these contributions totaled 8% of the individual premium and an additional 8% 
of the additional premium cost for spousal coverage. 

• Exempt employees hired on or after January I, 1995 must have at least 15 years of service and be 
at least age 60 to be eligible for retiree health insurance coverage. These retirees are entitled to 
individual health insurance benefits at the time of retirement and shall make the same percentage 
contribution as when last employed by the Community College and if the retiree's spouse and/or 
dependents need coverage, they may be carried under the group plan at the retiree's expense. As 
of August 31, 2020, the contribution rate is 10% of the individual premium and an additional 
I 00% of the additional premium cost for spousal coverage. 

Survivin!?. Spouse Coverage 

• Surviving spouses are coverage by the Community College's postemployment plan and are 
required to pay l 00% of the premium. 

Medicare Part B Reimbursement 

• The Community College does not provide Medicare Part B premium reimbursement for retirees. 
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Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 
Total 

(e) Total OI'EB Liabilizv 

Total 
117 
0 

176 
293 

The Community College's total OPEB liability of $48,319,557 was measured as of September J, 
2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September I, 20 I 8. 

({) Chan~es in the Total OPEB Dability 

The following table summarizes the changes in the Community College's total OPEB liability: 

Balance at August 3 l, 2019 

Changes recognized for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest on total OPEB liability 
Change in assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 

Net Changes 

Balance at August 31, 2020 

(g) Sensitivity of the Iola! OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

$ 41 579 950 

834,068 
1,653,207 
5,585,044 

(] .332, 7 ]?) 
6 73 9607 

$ 48.3 19,}57 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Community College, as well as what the 
Community College's total OPEB liability would be ifit were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1 percentage point lower (J .97 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (3.97 percent) than the current 
discount rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Assumption Increase 
(1.97%) (2.97%) (3.97%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 56,799,498 $ 48,319,557 $ 41,557,019 

(h) Sensilivily of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Community College, as well as what the 
Community College's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend 
rates that are I percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost 
trend rates: 

Total OPEB liability 

]% 
Decrease 

$ 40,752,683 

Current 
Assumption 

$ 48,319,557 
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1% 
Increase 
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(i) OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended August 31, 2020, tbe Community College recognized OPES expense of 
$212,258. At August 31, 2020, the Community College reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows ofresources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 
4,612,041 
1.488.551 

$ 6.100 592 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 3,032,976 
4,617,638 

$ J)~0.6 14 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ending August 31: 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

$ (1,210,982) 
$ ( I ,210,982) 
$ (I ,210,982) 
$ (125,652) 
$ 720,025 

G) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

Value of Assets 
Inflation Rate 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Discount Rate 

10 percent for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 
3.94 percent for 2089 
NIA 
2.2% 
Entry Age Normal as a Level Percentage of Payroll 
2.97% (3.96% was used in the prior valuation) 

The mortality table used for the current valuation is the Society of Actuaries' Scale RPH-2014 
Mortality Table, with generational mmtality adjusted to 2006 using scale MP-2014, and projected 
forward with scale MP-2018. 

The selected discount rate of 2.97% is based on tbe prescribed discount interest rate methodology 
under GASB 75 based on a rate for a 20-year high quality tax-exempt municipal bond index as of 
each measurement date. 

HCJDA 

(a) Plan Description 

HClDA offers medical coverage to retirees under a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan 
(The Plan) through Excellus Blue CTOss and Blue Shield. No assets are accumulated in a trust that 
meets all of the criteria in GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 4. 

The Plan does not issue a standalone publicly available financial report since there are no assets 
legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the Plan. 
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The Plan provides medical and prescription drug coverage to the retiree and his or her beneficiaries 
for the life of the retiree. 

(c) Conlrilmtium-

For employees hired after April 29, 2019, HCrDA will pay 90% of the premium costs for the health 
insurance coverage until the employee or retiree reaches age 65. After age 65, HCIDA pays 90% of 
premium costs of a Medicare Supplement Plan. HCIDA will pay 100% of the premium costs for the 
health insurance coverage for emp 1 oyees hired before April 29, 2015. 

The employer currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay­
as-you go basis. 

(d) Covered Employees 

Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 
Total 

( e) Total OP EB Liahility 

Total 
2 
0 
3 
5 

HCIDA's total OPEI3 liability of $1,694,387 was measured as of December 31, 2020, and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2019. Financial data and actuarial roll forward 
techniques were used to calculate the results as of December 31, 2020, the measureme11t date. 

(f) Changes in the Tu1ai OPEB Liability 

The following table summarizes the changes in the HCIDA's total OPEB liability: 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

Changes recognized for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest on total OPEB liability 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 
Benefit payments 

Net Changes 

Balance at December 31, 2020 

(g) Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

$. _ __,_,l.=3=63'-".6=5=9 

25,480 
27,191 

313,221 
(35.164) 
330,728 

$.=~' ~69,;__4~••32,8a!.c7 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the HCIDA, as well as what the HCfDA's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
( 1.02 percent) or I percentage point higher (3 .02 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Assumption Increase 
(1.02%) (2.02%) (3.02%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 2,194,905 $ 1,694,387 $ 1,362,160 
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(h) Sensitivity of the Iota! OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the HCTDA, as well as what the HCIDA 's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage 
point lower or l percentage point higher than the cun-ent healthcare cost trend rate: 

Total OPEB liability 

1% 
Decrease 

$ 1,364,791 

Current 
Assumption 

$ 1,694,387 

1% 
Increase 

$ 2,162,556 

W OPEB Expense and Deferred Ourjlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

Forthe year ended December 31, 2020, the HCIDA recognized OPEB expense of $17,507. 

At December 31, 2020, the HCIDA reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs L. . _1..U 121. 

Amounts repo1ted as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Year Ending December 31: 
2021 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

34,802 
34,802 
34,802 
34,802 
34,802 

(i) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 139,211 

The following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurement, unless otherwise 
specified: 

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
Value of Assets 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Discount Rate 

8.0 percent for 2020 decreasing to 5.0 percent in 2027 
NIA 
Entry Age Normal as a Level Percentage of Payroll 
2.92% (2.02% in prior valuation) 

The mortality table used for the current valuation was the Society of Actuaries Pub-20 l O Public 
Retirement Plans Healthy Male and Female Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Mo1tality tables 
based on Employee and Healthy Annuitant Tables for both pre and post-retirement projected with 
mo1tality improvements using the most current Society of Actuaries Mortality Improvement Scale 
MP-2019. 

The selected discount rate is based on the prescribed discount interest rate methodology under 
GASB No. 75 using an average of three 20-year bond indices (e.g., Bond Buyer-20 Bond GO, S&P 
Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index, and Fidelity GA AA 20 Years) as of December 31, 
2020. 
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15. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

General 
County Road 
Capital 

Fund 

Other Governmental 
Business-Type 

Interfund 
Receivable 

$ 1,333, J 94 $ 

6,365 

14,250 
3 275 

Payable 
20,615 $ 

328,410 
776,892 
163,637 
67 530 

lnterfund 
Revenues Expenditures 

18,789 $ 24,463,46 l 
9,487,698 4,007,759 

15,144,655 
3,820,087 9 

Total Activities $ 1.351..0...84 $=1,,15.7 .084 $ 28,471.229 $ 28 41 1,229 

• Net transfers from the General Fund and County Road Fund to the Capital Fund were for capital 
construction of and improvements on County buildings and roadways, respectively. 

• Transfers from the General Fund to the County Road Fund and Road Machinery Fund (included in 
Other Governmental Funds) were allocations of sales tax revenue to support the operating and 
maintenance of the County's machine1y and roadways. 

• The County typically transfers funds fi-om the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to pay debt 
service payments on outstanding bonds. 

16. CONTINGENCIES 

Self-Insurance 

The County is self-insured for workers' compensation. A liability of $3,900,000 for unpaid workers' 
compensation claims has been recorded as a long-term liability. The amounts accrued are based on 
individual case estimates for claims reported at December 31, 2020. 

Fe,leral and State Fumled Programs 

The County and Community College pai1icipate in a number of Federal and New York State grant and 
assistance programs. These programs are subject to financial and complim1ce audits by the grantors or 
their representatives. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting 
agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the County and Community College expect such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. Expenditures disallowed by completed audits have generally been 
immaterial in nature and, accordingly, have been reflected as adjustments to revenues in the year the 
expenditure was determined to be unallowable. 

Judgments and Claims 

The reporting entity of the County is subject to various claims and legal actions in the ordinary conduct 
of its affairs. Such claims and legal actions, in the opinion of management, are not expected to have a 
material effect on the financial condition of any of the components of the County's reporting entity. 
However, at December 3 l, 2020, the County does not have an estimated liability for any potential losses. 

17. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. One such risk is associated with 
its workers' compensation program. The County's program is self-insured and is accounted for in the 
Internal Service Fund. The program provides for the participation of other municipalities within the 
County and is administered by the County' s Workers' Compensation Board. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the )nternal Service Fund. 
Payments from other fonds and component units arc determined by two methods. The first method 
reimburses the risk management fund by assessment against County organizations based upon actual 
claims history for the preceding five years (a rolling average). The second method results in charges to 
County organizations based upon pro-rata taxable base value. 

The estimated accrued claims of $7,662,458 reported in the fund at December 31, 2020, are based upon 
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if 
information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicated that it is probable that a liability 
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated. A receivable has been recorded for amounts due from other municipalities that participate in 
the program. All liabilities are recorded at their value as of December 31, 2020. Changes in the fund's 
accrued claims liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2020, are as follows: 

Year 
2020 

Beginning of 
Year Liability 

$ 7,662,458 

Current-Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

$ 

Balance at 
Year End 

$ 7,662,458 

Included in the year-end liability are amounts payable for workers' compensation claims reported, and 
those incurred but not yet reported. During 2018, the County utilized an actuary for estimating liabilities 
under this coverage. Estimated liabilities include specific, incremental claim adjustment expenditures. 

The County has $3,900,000 accrued at December 31, 2020, in the Government-wide Statement of Net 
Assets for claims repo11cd, and those incurred but not yet reported. 

The County utilizes a third-party administrator who is responsible for processing claims and estimating 
liabilities under this coverage. Estimated liabilities include specific, incremental claim adjustment 
expenditures. In determining the liability, the County uses the gross, undiscounted amount, which is 
allowable in accordance with the GASI3. 

In addition to its workers' compensation program, the County is self-insured for the Major Medical 
portion of its health insurance. Under this program, the County accounts in the General Fund for claims 
in the General fund with maximum exposure of $150,000 per person per year and $1,000,000 per person 
per lifetime. The County has $392,588 accrued at December 31, 2020, in the General Fund for claims 
incuJTed but not yet repo11ed and is included in accounts payable. Remaining health insurance and dental 
coverage is provided through commercial insurance. 

County employees are entitled to coverage under the New York State Unemployment Insurance Law. 
The County has elected to discharge its liability to the New York State Unemployment Insurance Fund 
(the fund) by the benefit reimbursement method, a dollar-to-dollar reimbursement to the fund for benefits 
paid from the fund to former County employees and charged to the County's account. 

The County purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Coverage includes policies for 
general liability, automobile, and police protection. Other miscellaneous policies provide coverage with 
varying immaterial deductibles per individual claims. 

There have been no significant changes in insurance coverage since 2006. 
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18. FUND BALANCE 

COUNTY 01< HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The following is the disaggregation of the fund balance that is reported in summary on the Governmental 
Fund's Balance Sheet: 

Guvernmentul Funds 

Cuunty 

Reserve General Road Cagital Other Total 

Nonspcndable $ 530 387 $ 74.150 $ $ 41.783 $ 646.32() 

Restricted 

Debt Service 2,782,955 2,782,955 

Soil and Water 1,354,751 1,354,751 

Endowments 18,966 18,966 

Capital Projects 13,390 13,390 

l-lighway Reserve# I 289 289 
Emergency Disaster Work 3,099,547 3,099,547 

IDA/Shel! Building 225,227 225,227 

Stop DWI 139,943 139,943 

Alternatives to Incarceration 30,728 30,728 

Crime Proceeds 90,779 90,779 

Correctional Facility Sales Tax 608,228 608,228 

New County Jail 3,415,718 3,415,718 

County l31dg. Improvements 78,882 78,882 

IDA Promissory Note 73,588 73,588 

DA Fed Equitable Share 44,932 44,932 

I Jandicapped Parking 3,005 3,005 

Correctional facility 203,316 203,316 

Computer Replacement 140,150 140,150 

Jail Commissary 9,986 9,986 

Court Ordered Payments 514.178 514 178 

Total Restricted 5.578.660 3,099.836 13 390 4.156.672 12.848.558 

Assigned 
Encumbrances 192,088 51,776 439,957 683,821 

Other 1.315.647 1,478.473 2,794,120 

Designated for Subsequent Year's 

Expenditures ] 96.38 1 500.000 696.38 1 

Total Assigned 388.469 1.867.423 1.918 430 4 174.322 

Unassigned (Deficit) ':>J.283. 114 (267.502) (63.905) 22.951.707 

Total Fund Balance (Deficit) $ ?2 780 630 $ 5.041.409 $ (254 I !2) $ 6.052 280 $ 40.620.907 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

19. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

HCIDA recorded a prior period adjustment for $ l 00,000 to correctly present this amount as income in 
the prior period instead of a liability due to the County. The adjustment increased their beginning net 
position by this amount. 

20. NET POSITION DEFICITS 

The Statement of Net Position for governmental activities has an unrestricted net position deficit of 
$89,226,655 at December 31, 2020. This is the result of having long-term commitments that arc greater 
than currently available resources, primarily due to the accrual of other postemployment benefits of 
$140,209,957. 

Similarly, the Statement of Ne! Position for business-type activities has an unrestricted net pos1t1on 
deficit of $2,276,093 and a total net deficit of $415,196 at December 31, 2020. This is also the result of 
having long-term commitments that are greater than currently available resources, primarily due to the 
accrual of other postemployment benefits for the Sewer Fund of $3,168,157. 

The Statement of Net Position for the component units' activities also has an unrestricted net position 
deficit of$42,894,790 and a total net position deficit of$9,701,31 lat the respective component unit's 
fiscal year-end dates. This is also the result of having long-term commitments that are greater than 
currently available resources, primarily due to the accrual of other postemployment benefits of 
$50,013,944. 

The Capital Fund has an unassigned deficit in the governmental fund balance sheet of $267,502 and a 
total fund deficit of $254,112 at December 31, 2020. This deficit will be eliminated in future years with 
additional General Fund appropriations or from additional funding sources. 

21. TAX ABATEMENTS 

The County is subject to tax abatements that are granted by the HCIDA. Article 18-A of the New York 
State Municipal Law, "New York State Industrial Development Agency Act" was enacted to provide for 
the creation oflndustrial Development Agencies (IDA's) to facilitate economic development in specific 
localities, and delineate their powers and status as public benefit corporations. The legislation establishes 
the power of New York IDA's, including the authority to grant tax abatements and enter into agreements 
to require payments in lieu of taxes. Each IDA must adopt and follow a tax exemption policy with input 
from the effected taxing jurisdictions, however once created the IDA can independently grant abatements 
in conformity with their policy. The HCIDA enters into agreements to abate property tax for the purpose 
of increasing or retaining employment in the County. 

Property abatements may be partially offset by an agreement that requires payments in lieu of taxes. 
These agreements specify the annual amount to be remitted by the property owner and are allocated to 
the effected jurisdiction based on the proportion of taxes abated. The County has chosen to disclose 
information about its tax abatement by purpose. It established a quantitative threshold of lO percent of 
the total dollar amount of taxes abated during the year. 

Significant abatement agreements of HCIDA meeting the quantitative threshold resulted in a revenue 
impact to the County for the year December 3 1, 2020 as follows; 

Purpose 
Economic Development and Job Creation 

Gross Tax 
Reduction 

$ 772,122 
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Payments in 
Lieu of Taxes 
$ 149,973 

Net Revenue 
Reduction 

$ 622,149 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

22. CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF IMPLEEMTNING NEW ACCOUTNIGN STANDARD 

The following adjustments were made to the prior year's net position and fund balance due to the 
implementation of GASS 84, Fiduciary Accounting; 

• The Fiduciary Custodial Fund is a new fund required by the new accounting standard. The beginning 
net position was increased by $312,558. 

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

American Rescue Plan of2021 

In March 2021 Congress passed and President Biden signed into law the American Rescue Plan of 2021. 
The County was awarded 511,985,388 half of which it received in May 2021 and the other half of which it 
will receive sometime in 2022. 

The stated goals of the Plan are: 

• Support urgent COVID-19 response efforts to continue to decrease spread of the virus and bring the 
pandemic under control 

• Replace lost revenue for eligible state, local, territorial, and Tribal governments to strengthen support 
for vital public services and help retaii1 jobs 

• Support immediate economic stabilization for households and businesses 
• Address systemic public health and economic challenges that have contributed to the unequal impact 

of the pandemic 

The Corona virus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provide substantial flexibility for each government 
to meet local needs-including support for households, small businesses, impacted industries, essential 
workers, and the communities hardest hit by the crisis. These funds can also be used to make necessary 
investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure. 
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Revenues 
Real Property Taxes $ 

Real Property Tax Items 
Nonproperi.y Tax llems 

Depari.mental Income 
Intergovernmental Charges 

U5e of Money and Property 
Licenses and Permits 
l'ines and Forfeitures 

Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 
Miscellaneous Local Sources 
Interfund Revenues 
State Aid 

federal Aid 
Total Revenues 

Other financing Sources 
Appropriation or Prior Year, Fund l:lalance 
Appropriated Reserve 
Transfors from Other Funds 

Total Revenues and Other l'inancing Sources 

lclpcnditures 
General Govern men Lal Support 

Educatio11 
PLtblic Safety 
Public Health 

Trnnsportatio11 
Economic Assistance and Opportunity 
Culture and Recreation 
Home and Community Services 

Tolal Expenditures 

Other Financing llses 
Transfers lo Other l'unds 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Excess Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

AND EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND 

ACTUA l,- GENERAL FUND AND COUNTY ROAD FUND 

Original 
Budg,et 

25,702,406 $ 

2,289,115 
32,515,706 

6,481,061 
1,210,083 

919,542 
30,000 

119,590 
102,900 

l ,359,000 
62,498 

12,533,073 
9 840 473 

93,165,447 

313,506 
225,000 

93_703,95.3 

21,087,611 
6,561,138 
9,382,136 
5,389,970 

38,969,652 
868,419 
425 883 

82,684,809 

l ! 0\9 144 
93 703 953 

For th.e Year Ended December 31, 2020 

General 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Bud~et Actual (Unfavorable) 

25,702,406 $ 25,344,550 $ (357,856) $ 

2,289,115 2,061,658 (227,457) 
32,783,671 35,193,080 2,409,409 

6,669,900 6,138,949 (530,951) 
L274,824 1,182,505 (92,319) 

922,542 1,033,353 l 10,811 
30,000 27,310 (2,690) 

119,590 116,065 (3,525) 
102.900 44,568 (58,332) 

1,365,728 1,465,344 99.616 
62,498 62,498 

18,679,638 10,427,599 (8,252,039) 
14.2Q7.861 9.703.351 (4,504.510) 

104,210,673 92,800,830 (11,409,843) 

1,103,228 (1,103,228) 
I 1.684.017 (11,684.017) 

18 780 t& 7K9 9 
I 17.016.698 92.819.619 (24.197 079] 

20.269.923 19,553,095 716.828 
6,561,138 5,893,280 667,858 
9,948,384 8,915,075 1,033,309 
8,734,930 6,099,324 2,635,606 

41,256,346 35,168,807 6,087,539 
791,045 597,290 193,755 

3 560,293 595 049 2,965,244 
91,122,059 76,821,920 14,300,139 

25.894 639 24 463 461 1 431 178 
117.016 698 !O! 285.JSL 15,731.317 

$ 1s 46s 1~;,n ~ (8!!65 2G2l 

See fndependent Auditor's Report 
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Original 
Budg_et 

!,000,000 

1,850,000 
6,750 

1,500 
16,000 
13,000 
25,000 

5,000,000 

7,912,250 

500,000 

9 470.422 
)7 882.672 

12,742,672 

!2,742,672 

5 140 000 
IZ,882,672 

County Road 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Bud&et Actual _JUntavorable) 

$ $ $ 

1,000,000 1,000,000 

1,850,000 1,497,754 (352,246) 
6}50 7,586 836 

1,500 5,995 4,495 
16,000 4,455 (l l,545) 
13,000 (13,000) 
25.000 15,819 (9,181) 

5.000.000 2,923,336 (2,076,664) 
l 931 Ill 5 I 931.015 

7,912,250 7,385,960 {526,290) 

707,435 (707,435) 

9.487.698 9.487 698 
18.107.383 16 873 658 (1 .233 725) 

12,645,262 11,939,157 706, 105 

12,645,262 I !,939,157 706,105 

5 462 121 4 007 759 I 454,362 
18 107 383 _____12246,916 2.160A67 

,i; 926 74:;l $ <>~6'.H~ 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 
SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY A;\'D RELATED RATIOS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

2020* 2019* 2018* 

Service cost $ 2,956,759 $ 1,585,790 $ 1 _267,839 

Interest 2,519,485 3,548.453 3,661,060 

Changes in assumptions or other inputs 14,590,48] 23,789,043 

Expected benefit payments (2,831,203) (2,704,208) (2,698,134) 

Nel change in total OPEB liability 17,235,524 26,219,078 2,230,765 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 126, I 42,590 99,923,512 97,692,747 

Total OPEB liability- ending $ 143.378,114 s 126. 142.590 $ 99,923,512 

Covered employee payroll $ 16,547,224 $ 16,337,210 $ 16,337,210 

Total OPEI3 liability as a percentage of covered payroll 866.48% 772.12% 611.63% 

* IO years of historical information will not be available upon implementation. An additional year of historical information 
will be added each year subsequent to the year of implementation until 10 years of historical datu is available. 

Notes to Schcdnlc: 
Changes of benefit terms: Not Applicable. 
Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate changed from 2.9% in the prior valuation to 2.02% in the current valuation. 
Plan Assets: No assets are accumulated in a trustthatmeets all of the criteria ofGASBS No. 75, paragrnph 4, to pay benefits. 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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Contraclually Required ContributL011 

Contributions in Relation to the 

Corilracl\Ji)lly Requir~cl Co11tril.11Ltion 

Co11tnhuL1on Oelic1cncy (E:,:cc~:<.) 

Co u,1 L y1
!!. C O\•ered- ERS 

Em"Plovce P.ayroll 

C:onLril)uLicms as a Pc,cl!olagc or 
Covered-Employee Payrol I 

s 

,.020 ---
2.463,891 $ 

2.463.891_ 

0 s 

17.266,859 s 

14 27% 

COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

2UJ9 

2,4S7,357 

2.457.357 

16,943,402 

14 50% 

liBr the Ve~r Ended December 31, 2020 

ERS Pension Plan 

2111K 2017 20H 

£ 2,522,220 s 2,526,07] $ 2,801,878 

2.522.220 2.526,073 2,801,878 

$ s s 

$ 16,726,36Y s 16,682,658 s 16.400,05~ 

IS 08% l l 14,;>/I) 17 08% 

Information is presented only for the years available 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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$ 

s 

2015 2014 2013 2012 

3,262.048 s 3,64i,07J s 3,074,972 s 2,R~5,222 

J.262.Q48 3-641.07) 3,074,9n 2,885,'.J''J'l -

s s 

17,312.019 17.517,178 17,217,908 18,o:n1 16s 

18 84% ~079¾ 17 g6%, 1600% 



COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 
SCHEDULE OF THE COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABII.ITY 

Counly's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

COLmty's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

County's Covered-Employee Payroll 

County's Prnportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as a Percenlage 
of its Covered-Employee Payroll 

Plan 1-'iduciary Net Position as a Percentage nl'Total Pension Liability 

For the v~ar Ended December 31, 2020 

ERS Pension Plan 

2020 2019 2018 2017 

0.065518% 0.067453% 0.066950% 0.066217% 

$ 17,349,498 $ 4,779,235 $ 2,160,768 $ 6,222,318 

$ 17,266,859 $16,943,402 $ 16,726,369 $ I 6,682,658 

10048% 28.21% 12 92% 37 30% 

86.39% 96.27% 98.24% 9470% 

ln formation is presented only for the years available 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
I\R 

2016 2015 2014 

0.068850% 0.069652% 0,069652% 

$11,051,423 $ 2,352,606 $ 3,146,929 

$ 16,400,052 $17,312,019 $17,517,178 

67.39% !3 59% 17.96% 

90 70% 97 90% g7 20% 



DArcangelo&Co.L1P 
Certified Public Accounta nls & Consu ll:nnts 

120 Lomond Court, Ul.ica, N.Y. 13502-5050 
315-735-5216 Fax: 315-735-5210 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repo rti11g and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance Witb Govermnent Auditing 

Standards 

To the Chairman and Members of the County Legislature 
County of Herkimer, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Herkimer, New York, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compTise the 
County of Herkimer, New York's basic financial statements and have issued our rep011 thereon dated 
August 13, 2021. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of 
Herkimer County Industrial Development Agency as described in our report on the County of Herkimer, 
New York's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of 
internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by 
those auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County of Herkimer, 
New York's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of 
Herkimer, New York's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the County of Herkimer, New York's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of perfo1ming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

)gmni 
niernb<!r 

.w ,m«ur,..1 ul lti'p .. 1Uy 
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DJ\rcangelo&Co,LLP 
Cr.rlilir<l l'ubllc .-\mmnt"n!s& Consullan!s 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Herkimer, New York's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be repo1ted 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

August 13, 2021 

Utica, New York 
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DArcangelo&Co,ur 
CerUficd Public t\ccount,rnts & Consultants 

120 Lomond Courl, Utica, N.Y. 13502-5950 
315-735-5216 Fax: 315-735-5210 

lndependent Auditor's Rcpo11 on Compliance for Each Maior Program and on lnrernal Control Over 
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

To the Chairman and Members of the Collnty Legislature 
County of Herkimer, New York 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the County of Herkimer, New York's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material effect on 
each of the County of Herkimer, New York's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2020. The County of Herkimer, New York's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

The County of Herkimer, New York's basic financial statements include the operations of the Herkimer 
County Community College, which received $ I 0,670,050 in federal awards which is not included in the 
County of Herkimer, New York's schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended 
December 31, 2020. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Herkimer County 
Community College because their report is issued separately. 

Also, the County of Herkimer, New York's basic financial statements include the operations of the 
Herkimer County Industrial Development Agency, which received $999,997 in federal awards which is not 
included in the County of Herkimer, New York's schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year 
ended December 31, 2020. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Herkimer County 
Industrial Development Agency because the organizational unit engaged other auditors to perform an audit 
of compliance. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County of Herkimer, New York's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements refeffed to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of 
Herkimer, New York's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessa1y in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County of Herkimer, New 
York's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the County of Herkimer, New York complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the County of Herkimer, New York, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County of Herkimer, New York's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Herkimer, New York's internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfo1ming their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this rep011 on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Unifonn 
Guidance. Accordingly, this repo1t is not suitable for any other purpose. 

August 13, 2021 

Utica, New York 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Pass-Through 
Federal Entity 

Federal Grantor/Pass-17,rough CFDA Identifying Total Federal 
Grantor/Progrrarn or Cluster Title Number Number Exgenditures 

U.S. Degartment of Agriculture 
(Pass-Through NYS Department of 
Social Services) 
State Administrative Matching Grants 

for the Supplemental Nutrition 
Assistance Program 10.56 I No. 21-01 $ 724,641 

Total SNAP Cluster 724 641 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 724 641 

U.S. De[!artmem ofl·Iousing and Urban Develogment 
(Pass-Through NYS Office of Community Renewal) 
Community Development Block Grants/ 

State's program 14.228 528ME 136-19 101,075 
Community Development Block Grants/ 

State's program 14.228 528ED928-l 9 750.000 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 851,075 

U.S. Degartrnent of Justice 
(Direct) 
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program l 6.606 17,134 
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 7,439 

(Pass-Through NYS Office of Victim Servici::s) 
Crime Victim Assistance J 6.575 10973GG 42 841 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 67 414 

U.S. De[!aitment of Labor 
(Pass-Through NYS Department of Labor) 
WIOA Adult Program 17.258 No. 21-01 229,911 
WIOA Youth Activities 17.259 No. 21-01 146,683 
WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grant 17.278 No. 21-01 90.487 
Total WIOA Cluster 467.081 

Trade Adjustment Assistance 17.245 No. 21-01 79,364 

Total U.S. Department of Labor 546 445 

U.S. De11artment ofTrans11ortation 
(Pass-Through NYS STOP-DWI Foundation) 
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 No. C002358 23,580 
Total Highway Safety Cluster 23,580 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 23,580 

(Continued) 
See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(Continued) 

Pass-Through 
Federal Entity 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Identifying Total Federal 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Ex12enditures 

U.S. De12artment of Education 
(Pass-Through New York State Department 

of Health) 
Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families 84.181 No. C31637GG 18.664 

Total U.S. Department of Education 18.664 

Election Assistance Commission 
{Pass-Through NYS Board of Elections) 
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 T002546 1,045 
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 C003224 29,956 

Subtotal 3 I ,00 I 

COVID-19-Election Assistance Commission 90.404 C004190 59 368 

Total Election Assistance Commissi011 90 369 

U.S. De12artment of Health and Human Services 
(Pass-Through NYS Department of Aging) 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, 

Part B - Grants for Supportive Services 
and Senior Centers 93.044 No. 21.01 87,725 

Special Programs for the Aging - Title Ill, 
Part C - Nutrition Services 93.045 No. 21.01 128,663 

COVID-19 -Special Programs for the 
Aging - Title lll, Part C - Nutrition Services 93.045 No. 21.01 34,434 

Nutrition Services lucentive Program 93.053 No. 21.01 46 903 
Total Aging Cluster 297,725 

Special Programs for the Aging - Title Jll, 
Part D - Disease aud Health Promotion 
Services 93.043 No. 21.01 15,083 

National Family Caregiver Support, Title lll, 
Part E 93.052 No. 21.0l 43,885 

Medicare Enrollment Assistance Program 93.071 No. 21.01 13,376 

(Pass-Through Health Research Incorporated) 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 No. 1612-11 41,882 
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 No. 6300-01 95,373 
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 No. 6300-01 7 700 

Subtotal 144,955 

(Continued) 

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(Continued) 

F ederal G1'antor/Pass-Through 
G.rantor/Program or C luster Title 

(Direct) 
CABHl (Cooperative Agreements to Benefit 

Homeless Individuals 
CARES ACT - Provider Relief Fund 
(Pass-Through NYS Department of Mental H ea\ th) 
Medical Assistance Program 

(Pass-Through NYS Depaitment of Social Services) 
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
Child Support Enforcement 
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
COVID-19 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
Child Care and Development Block Grant 
Foster Care - Title IV-E 
Adoption Assistance 
Social Services Block Grant 
Chafee Foster Care Independence Program 
Medical Assistance Program 

(Pass-Through NYS Department of H ea Ith) 
Maternal and Child Health Services Block 

Grant to the States 
Immunization Grants 
COVID-19 Epidemiology and Laboratory 

Capacity for Infectious Diseases (ELC) 

(Pass-Through NYS Office of Temporary and 
Disability Assistance) 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

(Pass-Through NYS Office of Children and family 
Services) 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
Child Abuse and Neglect State Grants 
Total CCDF Cluster 
Total Medicaid Cluster 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

93.243 
93.498 

93.778 

93.556 
93.558 
93.563 
93.568 
93.568 
93.575 
93.658 
93.659 
93.667 
93.674 
93.778 

93.994 
93.268 

93.323 

93.558 

93.558 
93.669 

(Continued) 

Pass-Through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

NIA 

No. 21.01 
No. 21.01 
No. 21.01 
No. 21.01 
No. 21.01 
No. 21.01 
No.21.01 
No. 21.01 
No.21.01 
No. 21.01 
No. 21 .01 

No. C30896GG 
No. C32521GG 

No.6432-01 

NIA 

No. C028013 
SFY\920 

Total Federal 
Expenditw-es 

417,668 
3,247 

108,927 

26,388 
3,658,339 

409,168 
3,869,245 

24,527 
713,002 
810,472 
521,562 
753,149 

17,635 
72,312 

32,910 
16,950 

78,857 

104,120 

21,434 
27 096 

713 002 
181,239 

12.202,032 

Expenditures 
to 

Subrecipients 

2 l,434 
27,096 

61.406 

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(Continued) 

Pass-Through 
Federal Entity 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Identifying Total Federal 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expend itures 

Social Securin, Adrninistration 
(Direct) 

Incentive Payments for State and Local Institutions 96.001 & 
96.006 2 200 

Total Disability Insurance/SSI Cluster 2 200 

Total Social Security Administration 2.200 

(U.S. Degartment ofl:-lomelai1d Securi!Y 
(Pass-Through NYS Division ofHomeland Security) 

Public Assistance Grant 97.036 PA-02-NY-
4472 1,945,412 

Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 T837185 4,303 
97.042 T971082 15,140 
97.042 T837195 7,453 
97.042 T837205 4,184 
97.042 T971072 22.494 

Subtotal 53,574 

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 No. C971080 14,151 
97.067 No. T971094 49,000 
97.067 No. C971090 25 875 

Subtotal 89,026 

2,088,0 12 

Expenditures 
to 

Subrecipients 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Total Federal Financial Assistance $16&1..1.AJ.2 $ 93 6.Qfil 

See Independent Auditor's Report and N ates to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Prese11tation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures or Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of the County of Herkimer, New York, an entity as defined in Note 1 to the County's 
financial statements, under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 
2020. Federal awards are received directly or indirectly from the Depaiiment of Agriculture, Housing 
and Urban Development, Justice, Labor, Transportation, Education, Election Assistance Commission, 
Health and Human Services, Social Security Administration, and Homeland Security. The information 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminislralive Requirements, Cosl Principles, and Audit 
Requirements/or Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the County of Herkimer, New York, it is not intended to and does not 
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the County of Herkimer, New 
York. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The amounts 
reported as federal expenditures were obtained from the financial records detail, which is the source of 
the financial statements. 

New York State Child Care and Development Block Grant 

The amount reported under this granl includes federal and New York State monies. New York State 
does not provide a breakdown to the County. 

De 1l'finimis Indirect Col't Rate 

The County of Herkimer, New York has not elected to use the IO percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Donated Personal Protective Equipment (Unaudited) 

During the emergency period of COVID- l 9, federal agencies and recipients of federal assistance 
funds donated personal protective equipment (PPE) to non-federal entities. In connection with that 
donation, the recipient must disclose the estimated value of donated PPE, but such amounts are not 
included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The County did receive donated PPE 
during the reporting year in the amount of $1,450. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(a) Summary of Audit Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of the 
County of Herkimer, New York were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses were noted relating to the audit of the financial 
statements as reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Rep011ing and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the County of Herkimer, 
New York, which would be required to be repmied in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses were noted relating to the audit of the major 
federal award programs as repmied in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each 
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform 
Guidance. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the County of 
Herkimer, New York, expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. No audit findings were required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.5 l 6(a). 

7. The programs tested as major programs include: 

Protrram 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (T ANF) 
Medicaid Cluster 
Social Security Block Grant 
Public Assistance Grant 
Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and Non­
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. The County of Herkimer, New York, was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(h) Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

None. 

(c) Findings and Questioned Costs Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

None. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

STATUS OF PRIOR VEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- FEDERAL COMPLIANCE 
REQUIREMENTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(b) Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

None. 

(c) Findings and Questioned Costs Major Federal A wan/ Programs Audit 

None. 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and Internal Controls Over State Transportation Assistance 
Expended Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

To the Chairman and Members of the County Legislature 
County ofHerkimer, New York 

Report on Compliance for State Transportation Assistance Program Tested 

We have audited the County of Herkimer, New York's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the preliminary Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of Rules and 
Regulations (NYCRR) that could have direct and material effect on the County of Herkimer, New York's 
state transportation assistance program tested for the year ended December 31, 2020. The County of 
Herkimer, New York's program tested is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its state awards applicable to its state transportation assistance programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance the County of Herkimer, New York's state 
transportation assistance program tested based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Draft Part 43 
of NYCRR. Those standards and Draft Part 43 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a state transportation assistance program tested 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of Herkimer, New York's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opm1on on compliance for each state 
transportation assistance program tested. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of the 
County of Herkimer, New York's compliance. 

Opinion on Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested 

In our opinion, the County of Herkimer, New York complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements refetTed to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its state 
transportation assistance programs tested for the year enc.led December 31, 2020. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the County of Herkimer, New York, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County of Herkimer, New York's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect 
on state transportation assistance program tested to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each state transportation 
assistance program tested and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
Draft Part 43 of NYCRR, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of 
Herkimer, New York's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
fimctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
transportation assistance program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state transportation assistance program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state transportation 
assistance program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those chm·ged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might he material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given limitations during our 
audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended 

We have audited the financial statements of the County of Herkimer, New York as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated August 13, 2021, which contained an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming 
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the County of Herkimer, New York's 
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of state transportation assistance expended is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 ofNYCRR, and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of State transportation assistance 
expended is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results or that resting based on the requirements of Draft Part 43 
ofNYCRR. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

August 13, 2021 

Utica, New York 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Proi?:ram Title 

Consolidated Highway Improvements 

Pave NY 

Extreme Winter Recovery (EWR) 

Snow and Ice Removal 

Total State Transportation Assistance Expended 

NYS DOT 
Contract 
Number 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

Current Year 
Expenditures 

$ 2,188,944 

437,923 

109,074 

J.497,754 

$.,..A.233,695 

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF STA TE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended presents the activity of all 
New York State Department of Transportation awards administered by the County of Herkimer, New 
York, an entity as defined in Note 1 to the County's financial statements. 

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of State Transpo1tation Assistance Expended is presented using the 
accrual basis of accounting. The amounts reported as expenditures of State Transportation Assistance 
were obtained from the accounting records utilized to record activity for the applicable programs and 
periods. 
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COUNTY OF HERKIMER, NEW YORK 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - ST A TE TRANSPORTATION 
ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

(a) Summary of Audit Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opm10n on the basic financial statements of the 
County of Herkimer, New York. 

2. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses were noted relating to the audit of the financial 
statements as reported in the Independent Auditor's Rep011 on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Pe1formed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the County of Herkimer, 
New York, were required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

4. The auditor's report on compliance for the State award programs for the County of Herkimer, New 
York, expresses an unmodified opinion. 

5. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of State awards were 
reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and Controls Over State 
Transportation Assistance Expended Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

6. No audit findings required to be reported relative to the State award program tested for the County 
of Herkimer, New York, were reportable on this schedule. 

7. The County of Herkimer, New York, was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

8. State Transportation Assistance Program tested: Consolidated Highway Improvements 

(b) Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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